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Foreword by the Chair and Chief Executive
The 21/22 financial year saw continued disruption in the early months as a result 
of Covid 19 impacting on all of our operations. The roll out of the vaccination 
programme reduced the risk to colleagues, residents, and services and enabled a 
return to something closer to normality. The year ended with the Russian invasion of 
the Ukraine and a significant increase in household costs and inflation. This has had 
an impact on our direct costs and also on the incomes and budgets of our residents.

We were delighted to be able to re-open our 
office to employees and customers from the 
summer of 2021 and are excited to be moving 
to new offices in Autumn 2022 which will deliver 
significant savings that can be reinvested back 
into our services.

We have put in place a new three-year Corporate 
Strategy starting in April 2022 which focuses on 
improving services to our customers, providing 
homes we would be happy to live in and building 
new homes to meet the high level of housing 
need in South London. This strategy sets out our 
ambition and performance aspirations over six-
month periods so that we can more easily be held 
to account by our customers and the Board.

During the year we set up our Customer Excellence 
Panel compromising of Wandle residents working 
alongside us to make decisions about our services 
and how we improve them. They offered excellent 
contributions and challenges as we established 
our service improvement plans and our new 
Corporate Strategy. 

We have also set up a Board Customer Experience 
Committee with a wide remit to drive forward our 
service improvement work. This Committee has 
three Wandle residents on it. At Executive level our 
work in this area is now led by our new Executive 
Director of Customer Service, Suzanne Horsley 
who joined us in March this year. We also launched 
‘My Wandle’, an online portal to enable customers 
to contact us and access services in a way that 
suits them. 

The Board recognised that this was a difficult 
year for many customers whose incomes were 
impacted by disruption caused by Covid 19 
and most recently the cost-of-living crisis and 
agreeing the rent increase from April 2022 was an 
extremely difficult decision. In response, we have 
increased the investment into our ‘Helping Hands’ 
fund to assist customers in need and continue to 
see the incredible impact this has in supporting 
these customers.

Alongside the creation of the Customer Excellence 
Panel and Customer Experience Committee, we 
overhauled our approach to Governance during 
the year and have also seen significant changes 
in the Board membership including the departure 
of our Vice Chair Ian Green, who we would like to 
thank for his excellent service to Wandle. We have 
appointed five new Board members who have 
quickly got to grips with their role and have had a 
positive impact on our governance. 

The Board approved a New Homes Strategy and 
Wandle has recommenced an active development 
programme. Our aim is to deliver 500 new 
homes by March 2028 and we are very pleased 
to have signed contracts for the development at 
Summerstown Road which will bring online the 
first of these properties in 2023. We have started 
an innovative pilot of selling a small number of 
high value existing homes and replacing each 
one with at least two new homes. The Board 
will evaluate the impact of this to see if this is 
something we want to continue doing.

The quality of homes has been topical in the 
sector this year. We continue to invest in our 
existing homes through a number of programmes 
and have made progress in achieving our Decent 
Homes target this year. Our performance on gas 
servicing and other property risk and compliance 
areas remains high and above the sector average 
and reflects the Board’s priority to keep customers 
safe in their homes. 

We have made a significant investment in time 
and resources to keep our customers safe and 
prepare for the new fire and building safety 

regulations. You can read more 
about this on page 15.

We have revised our approach 
to Value for Money and 
developed a new strategy 
which was recently approved 
by the Board. Alongside 
the RSH metrics we have 
developed some Wandle 
metrics which we will be 
reporting on. A key part of the 
strategy is the appraisal of 

the financial performance of our homes which we 
started to do in early 2021/22. Linked to this is a 
series of Business Process reviews which will not 
only support our Value for Money Strategy but also 
improvements to customer services.

We faced some significant financial challenges 
this year particularly around our repairs service 
which cost us £2.9 million more than we expected 
over the year due to demand and increasing cost 
pressures. Despite this, we were still able to post a 
positive surplus of £11.8million (2021: £19.2m), 
only £0.9 million less than we expected thanks 
to higher than anticipated income from the sale of 
empty homes and shared ownership staircasing. 
We are delighted to have achieved this outcome 
and remain compliant with our Golden Rules and 
Loan Covenants.

We continued to improve our rent collection 
performance over the year at the same time as 
meeting our Homes for Cathy Commitments and 
supporting customers who needed assistance 
from the Breathing Space Debt Respite Scheme 
introduced during the year.

At the end of the 2021/22 year we were delighted 
to finally get recognition for the significant 
work we have been doing to support victims 
of domestic abuse. The accreditation we have 
received from the Domestic Abuse Housing 
Alliance is something we are all extremely 
proud of.

As we look forward to 2022/23, we have much to 
be excited about, with improvements expected 
across our services, a new website, a new office 
and plans for our customer conference to be held 
next summer. We also are prepared for the vast 
changes coming our way as a result of the Social 
Housing White Paper, Building Safety Bill, Planning 
Bill, Leasehold reform, the new shared ownership 
model and the governments levelling up initiative.

We would like to thank our involved customers, 
the Board, the Executive Team, and all Wandle 
colleagues for their work this year.

Valerie Vaughan-Dick, MBE 
Wandle Chair

Tracey Lees
Chief Executive

We have put in place a new 
three-year Corporate Strategy 

starting in April 2022 which 
focuses on improving services to 
our customers, providing homes 
we would be happy to live in and 
building new homes to meet the 

high level of housing need in 
South London.
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About Wandle 
Founded in 1967 as the Merton Family Housing Trust and 
in response to Cathy Come Home, we have since grown 
into an organisation with over 7,000 homes across nine 
south London boroughs providing homes for rent (social 
and affordable), shared ownership, outright sale, and 
supported housing. We also have a small portfolio of 
commercial properties and garages.

We see our purpose as supporting people, across south 
London, who need a home and we are helping to tackle 
the shortage of good quality affordable housing by 
providing homes for people most in need of housing.

We want to be a good landlord and contribute to 
building strong communities in south London and 
deliver against our vision ‘Homes to be proud of and 
services you can trust’.

Our Business Model 
Our business model has been established to develop 
new homes and deliver landlord services in a way that 
supports our founders’ original aspirations and our 
purpose and vision.

As a developer we build homes for sub-market rent and 
low-cost home ownership.

As a landlord we deliver a range of services including 
housing and tenancy management, repairs and 
maintenance, and income collection, all underpinned 
by our ambition to deliver consistently good customer 
services. We aim to generate a surplus on our core 
landlord activities and to measure this through our 
‘Social Housing Operating Margin’, which is one of our key 
financial performance indicators. Where our services are 
subject to a separate service charge, we aim to recover 
our service costs through these charges. Any surplus 
generated on landlord activities contributes towards the 
development of new affordable homes.

In addition to these core activities, we are committed 
to addressing wider social issues across our 
neighbourhoods. Wandle works in partnership across 
south London to support programmes to improve the 
life chances of our customers, help them to find jobs, 
further their education and skills, and reduce anti-
social behaviour. Support is also provided for customers 
facing other challenges, such as the financial impact of 
welfare reform.

Principal activities and review of business

Strategic 
Report

Wandle’s Strategic Report and Financial Statements

6 7



2020/21 2021/22

General needs 5,692 5,678

Supported housing 173 172

Intermediate rent and keyworker 69 69

Shared ownership 796 793

Leased units 513 529

Market rented 4 4

Other 36 36

Total units owned and managed 7,283 7,281

Equity loan products 55 54

Total units 7,338 7,335

Number of units managed by a third party 222 222

Number of units managed for a third party 4 4

Number of units owned and managed

Main area of operations

7,561 homes in total

1,38881 164 729 314 1,483 1,329 277 1,783 13

Other 
Boroughs

WandsworthSuttonSouthwarkMertonLewishamLambethKingston  
upon  

Thames

CroydonBromley

Wandle’s group structure and operating companies are set out below:

Group Structure

Ravensbourne  
Developments Ltd

Non-charitable

Development and  
Market Sale Company

Wholly owned by Wandle

Delta  
Homes Ltd

Non-charitable 

Design and  
Build Company

Wholly owned by Wandle

Unitworthy Property 
Management Ltd

Non-charitable

Property Management 
Company

Majority owned by Wandle

Wandle Housing  
Association Ltd

Charitable Housing  
Association

8

Wandle’s Strategic Report and Financial Statements

9



Strategy and objectives

As a result, we set out to create a new Wandle 
Corporate Strategy to run from April 2022 to the end of 
March 2025. Within this updated Corporate Strategy, 
we have set ourselves three strategic themes to support 
the delivery of our purpose. The strategic themes are 

the areas that will receive significant focus and drive. 
These are underpinned by our three enabling objectives 
– critical activities without which we will not be able to 
deliver our themes.

In March 2019 the Board approved our Target Operating Model (TOM), our new strategy 
that set out our vision and aspirations to 2024.  When this was updated in 2021, it was 
clear that our original aspirations had been heavily impacted by disruption caused by 
Covid and Brexit, and so we needed to realign our ambitions and ensure our customers 
views would be properly taken into account.

Enabling Objectives

Financial Resilience Well Governed Employer of Choice

Outcomes for 
customers that 
make us proud

Providing homes we 
would be happy to 

live in

Building new homes 
and successful 
communities

Strategic Themes

Prior to the launch of our new strategy, we have made good progress on a number of areas across the organisation. However 
we recognise that we still have a long way to go, to ensure we give our customers the services they deserve.  The major 
activities we have delivered over the past year are shown below:

 9 Creation of the Customer Excellence Panel, and 
training for the members of the panel

 9 Creation of a customer focussed task and finish 
group aimed at driving improvements in services, 
and the creation of a customer committee that will 
report directly to the Board

 9 Launch of MyWandle, providing customers with 
the opportunity to use digital platforms to access 
Wandle services and information relating to 
their tenancies

 9 We recruited a new Executive Director of 
Customer Services.

 9 We carried out an external review of our governance 
arrangements and have begun implementation of 
recommendations identified from the review

 9 We carried out a leadership management 
programme to support the introduction of a 
leadership charter

 9 Recruited a new chair and new board members

 9 Created a treasury strategy and begun 
implementation of the key actions

 9 Created a new homes strategy and begun 
implementation of the key actions

 9 Created a damp and mould working group to 
focus on all damp and mould issues reported by 
our customers

 9 Undertaken an outbound programme of calls to 
support vulnerable customers during the various 
covid lockdowns

 9 Created an equality and diversity working group to 
improve our approach to EDI

 9 Approved our Customer Empowerment strategy and 
begun its implementation

 9 Commenced our partnership with the Institute of 
Customer Service to help drive the service culture 
changes needed

 9 Implemented a new customer service survey to 
reflect the tenant satisfaction measures being 
introduced by the regulator of social housing

 9 Concluded the implementation of our Stream 
IT  programme

 9 Overhauled our approach to domestic abuse working 
with the Domestic Abuse Housing Alliance

 9 Created our Helping Hand fund to support 
residents by providing vouchers for food and basic 
household items

 9 Increased the resources in our customer facing 
teams and the amount of money we spend on repairs

 9 Introduced improvements to the scheduling of 
our repair appointments leading to a reduction in 
cancellations and changes

 9 Completed review of how we calculate and 
communicate service charges and began 
implementation of a series of improvements

One of the key differences from the TOM to the new 
Corporate Strategy is that we have developed the new 
three year strategy in six monthly phases.

These provide transparency about the work we plan 
to complete and how we expect our performance to 
improve, enabling the delivery of the plan to be easily 
monitored.  Our new Corporate Strategy can be located 
here; wandle.com/corporate-plan.

Wandle’s Strategic Report and Financial Statements
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2021/22 Performance Highlights
In the 2021/22 financial year we faced some significant challenges around the services 
we deliver.  We saw significant increases in anti-social behavior, complaints and disrepair 
and significant cost pressure on repairs generally.  

We commenced a detailed review of our repairs delivery model in 2020 and are due to decide on the future delivery model 
shortly.  Our work in progress fluctuated over the year but we faced pressure to complete an increasing number of repair jobs.

Income collection improved over the year for current tenants but we saw an increase in 
our former tenant debt partly due to a delay in writing off some payments by year end.

We adopted the newly proposed tenant satisfaction measures as a pilot in April 2021, trying different methods to collect the 
data from different groups of customers. This helped us understand and learn from our customers’ feedback, which put us 
in a stronger position to improve our services in 2022/23 onwards.  Satisfaction levels have been too low, so we put in place 
improvements to raise customer satisfaction, which will bring down complaint levels.

Jobs in and Jobs out

Arrears levels this year
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Complaint cases opened and close by month (rolling 13 months)

Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22

Complaint Cases Logged 128 107 154 155 126 139 127 141 168 181 140 149 201

Complaint Cases Closed 126 127 141 174 140 146 136 186 176 173 137 219 211

Wandle’s Strategic Report and Financial Statements

12 13



Repairs performance Property Compliance
Following the release of Covid 19 lockdown during the early part of 2021, the repairs 
service struggled to keep up with the bounce back demand for repairs and also 
recruitment of operatives to resource the DLO operations. The service, which was initially 
supplemented with sub-contractors, has now a recruited a full complement of operatives 
and a reduced level of outstanding jobs. 

Effective management of fire safety (and Building Safety) within our property portfolio 
has remained high on our agenda. The changes to fire safety legislation resulting from 
the new Fire Safety Act 2020 and Building Safety Act 2022 have brought increased focus 
on fire safety and we have reviewed our approach to fire risk management in response to 
emerging requirements.

With robust management controls and service planning, 
operative productivity has improved and the average time 
for completing repairs at the end of the year is now 16 days. 
The new quality control initiatives implemented, including 
post completion quality checks are showing over 90% 
transactional customer satisfaction. However, our customer 
satisfaction targets based on perception of the repairs 
service remain lower than we would like and the volume of 
complaints on our repairs activity has been high. 

During the year, a damp and mould project was implemented. 
We contacted 200 tenants of shortlisted properties with 
a history or propensity for leaks, condensation and damp 
incidents. We surveyed those properties where residents 
confirmed damp and mould were present. Appropriate 
interventions to eradicate mould have been commissioned 
following the surveys. 

A new asset management strategy, which will be approved 
in the next few months, will consider the lessons learned 
from the damp and mould project and seek to implement a 
proactive and responsive survey programme, which should 
also lead to a reduction in our disrepair cases.

Last year, the Board undertook an options appraisal for 
our property maintenance activities and concluded an 
outsourced delivery model should be considered for our 
repairs service. Since then, we have worked to procure two 
repairs and maintenance contractors for our responsive, 
voids and major repairs (including kitchen and bathroom 
replacements) and a gas contractor for repairs and servicing 
to boilers and other gas appliances.

Remedial actions arising from inspection of external walls 
system on blocks above 11m high have been identified in 
7 blocks owned by Wandle and a further 5 blocks owned by a 
superior landlord. Costs for the relevant remedial actions are 
captured in the long term financial plan, while we continue 
discussions on cost recovery from the original developers/
constructors and the Government’s building safety fund. 
We completed remedial works for one of the blocks during 
2021/22 and expect to commence works on other blocks 
during 2022/23 financial year. 

 A revised approach to fire risk assessments which includes 
balconies, external wall material in line the new PAS9980 in 
the building safety legislation will be implemented for all our 
properties during the coming months. We have strengthened 
our approach to ensure customers are communicated with 
effectively to mitigate building safety risks.

Keeping our customers safe continues to be our number one 
priority and our performance on property compliance shows 
that we have been successful in this area. 

At 31st March 2022, 98% of the portfolio was compliant 
with Decent Homes standards. Our £7.5 million reinvestment 
programme in 2021/22 focused on achieving 100% 
compliance with Decent Homes by 31 March 2022. However 
programme disruptions arising from the Covid lockdown 
impacted both supply chain manufacturing and access 
to properties, resulting in Decent Homes component 
replacements for a small number of properties remaining 

outstanding. These are mainly windows and doors 
installations, which will be completed during 2022/23. 

We have made good progress on our transition from ten to 
five yearly electrical inspections for our domestic properties. 
The outstanding properties are currently managed through 
our ‘no access’ procedures, some of which have also been 
impacted by the covid lockdown case backlog in the courts. 

* Wandle has had some challenges completing fire risk assessment actions (FRAs), due to the Covid 19 pandemic and 
disruption of our supply chains. As a result we have focused on the completion of high priority FRAs in 2021/22.

Compliance area
Compliance Performance
March 2022

Compliance Performance
March 2021

Gas safety 100% 100%

Fire risk assessment compliance 100% 100%

Asbestos audits 0 overdue 0 overdue

Water risk assessments 100% completed 100% completed

Electrical testing 97.9% 95.49%

Passenger lifts 100% 100%

Automatic gates 100% 100%

Waste water pumps 100% 100%

Decent homes 98% 93%
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519 new affordable homes (including 29 homes under 
construction) will be delivered through our 2016 to 2021 
New Homes Strategy with support from the Greater 
London Authority and other local authority partners. The 
homes acquired through land-led developments and S106 
acquisitions are all affordable with the following tenure split:

The Board approved a new homes growth strategy in July 
2021 with an ambition to deliver a minimum of 500 affordable 
homes in South London by March 2028. We propose to deliver 
new homes with the following guiding principles:

 � Homes will be genuinely affordable, safe, sustainable and 
well designed within core operating areas.

 � Homes will achieve value for money, minimising the use 
of working capital.

 � Homes will utilise Wandle’s expertise and resources, and 
minimises risk and exposure.

To help ensure economies of scale and value for money in 
terms of service delivery, Wandle’s new homes growth will be 
focused on existing areas of operation. We will focus on Social 
Rent and Shared Ownership as these tenures best align to 
Wandle’s core competencies, appetite for risk and the GLA’s 
latest Affordable Homes Programme (2021-26). We will seek 
grant subsidy from the GLA through its continuous market 
engagement process.

A blend of s106 and land led schemes will be the focus of 
immediate future growth. Smaller sized developments (i.e. 20 
to 60 homes) are considered to be best aligned with Wandle’s 
current growth aspirations, recent performance, current 
skills and experience and expected competitiveness in the 
market. We will explore opportunities to establish a strategic 
partnership with other South London organisations, registered 
providers and local authorities.

We have started to seek and secure new development 
opportunities, with contract negotiations taking place for 
63 dwellings on 5 sites in Southwark, Wandsworth and 
Lambeth. The Board also considered and approved the 
options appraisal for the development of 93 new homes at 
Summerstown in Merton. Contracts for the construction works 
were agreed with Higgins Construction in March 2022. The 
site owned by Wandle was acquired in 2018 and the Board 
agreed to proceed with the development following a strategic 
review and confirmation of additional grant subsidy from the 
GLA to support its viability. The construction works are due to 
be completed in 2025.

A Build More Homes project has been commissioned to 
support the delivery of additional new homes. Modelling 
suggests that for every 10 high value homes we sell (some 
of these have low energy efficiency performance) we can 
provide 23 additional new affordable homes. The pilot 
project completing in March 2023 will seek to support and 
voluntarily rehouse 35 existing residents currently living 
in properties valued at £650k or more. These tenants are 
sometimes living in poor conditions, or in homes unsuitable 
for their needs. The properties once vacant will be sold on 
the open market and their proceeds used to develop up to 
81 new homes. On completion of the pilot, the Board will 
consider the effectiveness of the programme to support our 
growth objectives.

Development Wandle Case Studies
During 2021/22, we completed 22 new shared ownership homes in Croydon, all of which 
have been sold. Construction work on another site in Croydon (29 dwellings), which was 
severely impacted by the Covid pandemic is still progressing.  

   Social/Affordable rents
   Shared Ownership

   London Living Rent

New Homes

Helping Hands Case Study 1
Ms SH is a vulnerable resident suffering with Cerebral 
Palsy, Crohn disease and, as a result of her disability, 
she has developed Social Anxiety. Ms SH states, “I am 
currently in debt. I am in rent arrears of £1060 and 
overpayment in HB of £400. I also have utility arrears 
of £1350 including gas which is £1400. My fences are 
broken, and my neighbour is complaining as I have 
a dog and is scared that something might happen. 
My cooker is hardly working as its 20 years old, and I 
sleep on the floor on the mattress. I also need a sofa, 
clothing, and shoes”.

The Resident Support Team contacted the resident 
to assist her to complete a Helping Hands fund (HHF) 
application. Ms SH was very distressed and in tears 
during the call. 

Due to the gravity of her circumstances Ms SH’s 
application was processed on a fast-track basis and 
she was awarded a significantly higher amount in 
vouchers, £800, to purchase a cooker and a bed. 

Ms SH stated that the bed was incredibly useful as 
she had mobility issues from sleeping on a mattress 
on the floor. 

Due to her high debts, she was also awarded £350 
in Sainsbury’s vouchers so that she can use towards 
household groceries which will enable her to pay for 
fuel costs. 

Ms SH provided the following statement after 
receiving the HHF vouchers – “Thank you I have 
received them and can I once again thank you so 
much for these and the Sainsburys vouchers it’s 
helped me so much, my electric went off yesterday 
and I can’t afford to put it on until Thursday and 
my energy company refuse to help because I’m 
in debt with them so these vouchers are going to 
help so much as I can now order a cooker and my 
daughter needs a bed more than I do as she needs 
rest to study so I will get her a nice bed thank you 
so so much”. 

Helping Hands Case Study 2
Mr BA is considered a very vulnerable resident 
who is in supported living. Mr BA is under the care 
of numerous external agencies including social 
services, Community Mental Health Team as well 
as private care. He has been supported by his 
Neighbourhood Customer Service Officer to manage 
his challenges and a HHF application was submitted 
to assist him with some home essentials and any 
other additional support we could obtain. Due to his 
health condition, much of the property had become 
soiled and partially damaged.  

The HHF was accessed, and he was awarded £1,800 
in vouchers to purchase a new sofa, a bed, bedding, 
and other household essentials. He was also awarded 

£200 for food as he suffers with IBS and as such has 
dietary requirements.  

Through a combination of the team’s own initiative 
as well as encouraging multi agency work with the 
relevant statutory bodies, safeguarding measures 
have now been taken to assist Mr BA. However, it 
is with the use of HHF that the correct funds were 
allocated swiftly to ensure that a person with 
extreme vulnerabilities was able to access the correct 
items for his personal needs swiftly. The Resident 
Support Team attended stores to purchase the items 
and arrange for their delivery. An example of the 
team going the extra mile to ensure the resident 
receives the help he needs.

11,  
2%

162,  
31%

346,  
67%
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2021/22 Highlights – Financial performance

£m 2022 2021

Turnover 59.4 57.3

Cost of sales (5.9) (4.0)

Operating costs (41.7) (36.9)

Surplus on sale of assets 12.1 12.9

Operating surplus 24.0 29.2

Net interest cost (12.4) (10.1)

Fair value movements 0.3 0.2

Total surplus for the year 11.8 19.2

Turnover 
Rental and service charge income from social housing 
lettings of £48.6m represents 82% of total income. 
(2021: £48.0m – 83% of total income). Turnover from 
other social housing activities includes £6.3m (2021: 
£4.6m) from first tranche sales plus other income of 
£0.7m, predominantly lease extensions (2021: £0.3m). 
Other non-social housing turnover, that includes 
commercial rent, development fees and market rent was 
£0.3m (2021: £0.5m).

Operating surplus
The operating surplus for the year was 18% lower than 
the previous year at £24.0m (2021: £29.2m). The first 
tranche shared ownership sales surplus of £0.4m (2021: 
£0.6m) was in line with forecasts. 

Total operating costs increased to £41.7m (2021: 
£36.9m). The biggest driver for these cost increases was 
the increased number of repairs required following the 
Covid lockdowns, which cost an additional £2.9m to 
deliver in 2021/22.  

Surplus on the sale of fixed assets of £12.1m (2021: 
£12.9m), excluding first tranche shared ownership sales, 
exceeded budget expectations. This was primarily due 
to property staircasing surpluses which were £2.4m 
over budget. 

Cost of sales
There were 39 first tranche shared ownership sales 
with a cost of sales of £5.9m. The gross profit margin 
percentage was 7.1% (2021: 13.0%). 

 Operating costs
Overall total operating costs were £41.7 million, an 
increase of £4.7m from 2021. Circa £2.9m additional 
expenditure was required for responsive repairs, and 
£1.2m was required for disrepair legal settlements. 
Operating costs included a provision for fire remediation 
work of £1.3m (2021 £1.1m).

Surplus on sale of assets
The £12.1 million surplus from the sale of assets is 7% 
lower than the prior year, with 15 empty properties sold. 
The 2020/21 surplus included £9.0 million from the sale 
of Solomon’s Passage, a scheme previously developed 
by Wandle.

Net interest and other income
Net interest of £12.4m (2021: £10.1m) includes £1.2m 
(2021: £3.2m) of interest income in respect of the change 
in the fair value of ineffective interest rate hedges. Gross 
interest payable was £13.7m (2021: £13.6m). 

Building long-term financial capacity
At 31 March 2022, Wandle had £387m of committed 
debt funding (2021: £396m) with drawn funding 
totalling £314m (2021: £327m). All undrawn funding 
is committed and is available at very short notice. At 
31 March 2022, we maintained total liquidity of £122m, 
represented by £49m of immediately available cash 
(£42m) and short-term deposits (£7m) plus £73m of 
committed undrawn revolving credit facilities.

Wandle continues to maintain a diversified loan portfolio 
with a number of funding sources. At 31 March 2022, 
71% of our funding was from bi-lateral term loan 
facilities from capital markets, bank and building society 
lenders with the balance provided by revolving credit 
facilities from banks and a building society.

Wandle has limited refinancing risk in the next five years 
with 74% of its debt maturing after 5 years. 

We continue to be risk averse in our approach to interest 
rate management, maintaining a policy of carrying the 
majority of our debt at fixed rates of interest through a 
mixture of embedded fixed rate loans and standalone 
hedging agreements.

The overall level of debt funding is constrained 
by our Golden Rules which ensure that we have 
sufficient debt service capacity under a broad range of 
adverse scenarios.

Total committed funding

Drawn Debt

Undrawn 
Debt

19%

81%

Liquidity

Cash

Committed 
Undrawn 
Facilities

40%

60%

Hedging activity

Fixed 
through loan 
documentation

Fixed through 
Standalone 
Agreements

Floating

70%

3%

27%

Committed facility mix

Debt Capital 
Markets

Bank Term  
Facilities

Revolving Credit 
Facilities

26%

33%

41%
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Value for 
Money

Value for money
In June 2022 we introduced a new Value for Money (VFM) Strategy, taking a Strategic 
approach to VFM. The new VFM Strategy defines five key VFM strategic objectives 
for Wandle;

1. Generate the maximum social and financial return 
from our assets and other resources for the benefit 
of our customers

2. Manage our services through optimised processes 
that deliver consistently good services to our 
customers

3. Carry out option appraisals for our services and 
assets in order to optimise their economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness

4. Work with high performing partners, contractors 
and suppliers, selected and retained to enhance the 
services we provide to our customers

5. Reinvest the financial returns we make from 
achieving our VFM objectives to optimise the 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness of our 
services and assets over the longer term (30 years)

1.  Generate the maximum social and financial return from  
our assets and other resources for the benefit of our customers
We are quite clear that our first priority as a housing 
association and a charity, is to provide housing for 
those people in housing need in South London who 
cannot afford to buy their homes on the open market. 
We recognise that providing housing for people in need 
provides a social value return which will constrain the 
financial returns we can achieve from our properties.

However, subject to these constraints, we recognise 
the importance of generating the maximum financial 
return from our properties. This will enable us to reinvest 
the surpluses we make into improving our services and 
properties for the benefit of our customers.

Build More Homes Pilot

In July 2021, the Board approved a pilot programme 
designed to enable the organisation to build and 
acquire more homes – the Build More Homes pilot. The 
programme involves engaging with tenants of homes 
with a high open market value who may prefer to be 
rehoused in smaller properties which are more suitable 
for their needs. Where this is the case, their original 
properties will then be sold, and the proceeds used to 
develop or acquire more properties for rent or shared 

ownership. The average value of the homes that will be 
sold through the programme is £600k to £700k, and we 
aim to provide 2.3 new homes for every one we sell.

The pilot programme will involve replacing 35 existing 
properties with a forecast 81 new properties. Once the 
pilot programme is complete in March 2023, a forecast 
additional £200k net rental income p.a will be generated.

Business Stream Accounting

A key part of Wandle’s VFM Strategy is the appraisal of 
the financial performance of our properties based on 
their operating margins.

It is good business practice and a key requirement of 
the Regulator’s VFM code to embed VFM at the level 
of individual business streams…. “Resources and 
assets should be considered in the widest sense which 
should include investments into particular services or 
businessstreams.

Wandle first started to measure financial performance 
across its different business streams in the Q2 2021/22 
Management accounts.
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Then, for the first time in our 2022/23 budget, Wandle 
was able to identify financial performance of its different 
property types;

 � Houses and bungalows

 � Purpose-built flats developed before 2012

 � Purpose-built flats developed from 2012 onwards

 � Converted properties – older houses converted into a 
number of flats

We will develop this analysis in our Management 
Accounts reporting in 2022/23 to identify property types 
which may have a relatively poor financial performance. 
Once identified we can assess these for either investment 
(to improve their performance) or, alternatively, 
divestment if performance improvement proves to be 
impracticable from a financial or asset management 
perspective.

Measuring VFM

We will use the following metrics to measure the social 
value and financial returns on our assets;

 � Return on Capital Employed1

 � Return on Capital Employed – based on open 
market values2

 � Operating margin (Overall)1

 � Operating margin (Social Housing)1

 � Operating margin for different business streams(Overall 
– before depreciation)2

 � Headline social housing cost per unit1

 � % Gearing1

 � Overall customer satisfaction

 � No. of complaints per 1,000 properties p.a.

 � % rent loss from empty properties

 � Income collected as a % of income due

 � New supply delivered %1

 � % satisfaction with repairs delivered 
(transactional measure)

 � Reinvestment %1

 � % of transactions through the MyWandle 
digital channels

 � Social value outcomes achieved through the 
Helping Hands Fund2

1    Metrics shown in bold are set by the Regulator of 
Social Housing

2    Metrics shown in italics are internal measures which 
cannot be readily benchmarked against other 
housing providers

2.  Manage our services through optimised processes that  
deliver consistently good services to our customers
Effective management of business processes has been 
an area where Wandle has in the past found it difficult 
to deliver consistent results. With the implementation 
of Microsoft Dynamics in 2020/21, Wandle has a flexible 
and responsive transaction management and reporting 
system which can be adapted to track the effectiveness 
of Wandle’s core business processes. 

Recognising this, the Executive Team and Board have 
started to roll out a series of process reviews which will 
utilise the systems flexibility and reporting capabilities.

The first process review covering responsive repairs, was 
completed in January 2021. The review made a series 
of recommendations for improving existing responsive 
repairs processes which are being implemented. Further 
reviews covering Leasehold, Housing, Major Repairs and 
Asset Management are planned for 2022/23.

4.  Work with high performing partners, contractors and suppliers, selected  
and retained to enhance the services we provide to our customers
In September 2020, Wandle appointed MCP2 as 
procurement advisors. Under the contract MCP2 
provides a procurement team over a three year period, 
with the aim of delivering compliance and VFM in 
procurement and contract management for Wandle. The 
contract specifies that the costs of MCP2’s services will 
be more than covered by the savings identified by MCP2. 
So far, the following benefits have been realised through 
the contract;

 � MCP2 have implemented procurement improvements 
to ensure procurement legislation and best 
practice is being followed in line with the Public 
Contract Regulations, and Wandle’s internal 
sourcing procedures.

 � Fifty staff across the organisation have been trained 
on procurement and/or contract management. 

 � A fully implemented Forward Procurement Plan has 
been introduced which contains information on over 
160 known procurements provisions. 

 � A ‘Core Contracts’ Register covering 40 key contracts 
has been established to identify and minimise 
supply  risks. 

 � MCP2 are using their procurement expertise to drive 
Value for Money savings on the contracts they help 
to procure. So far £196k of net cashable savings have 
been generated (after allowing for the costs of the 
procurement team).

3.  Evaluate our services and assets in order to optimise  
their economy, efficiency and effectiveness

Appraising our assets 

The Executive Team and Board consider the performance 
of our assets against certain performance criteria as 
part of our Asset Management Strategy, using both 
financial and strategic criteria. Where vacant properties 
do not meet the requirements for retention as set out by 
the Asset management Strategy, they will be identified 
for disposal. 

In addition to this assessment, Wandle’s property 
portfolio will be assessed to identify properties which are 
candidates for the Build More Homes pilot described in 
Strategic Objective 1.

Appraising our services

Wandle will regularly review the way it delivers services 
to determine the optimum delivery mechanism for each 
service. A service option appraisal will be carried out 
for strategic reviews such as the decision to explore 
tendering our responsive repairs and gas services, taken 
in 2020/21 and due to complete in 2022/23, and also 
decisions about operational delivery such as the DLO 
incentive scheme introduced in 2021/22.

In 2021/22, the Executive Team identified that the 
productivity of Wandle’s DLO was relatively low 
compared to benchmarks set by high performing DLO’s 
in other providers. The Interim Director of Maintenance 
established pilot initiative to improve productivity, 
including a bonus scheme for DLO operatives.  The 
pilot proved to be a success, and we are projecting net 
financial savings from reduced sub-contractor usage 
of approximately £386k in 2022/23. The scheme 
parameters will be reviewed in 2022/23 to ensure that 
the optimum financial and customer service benefit 
is derived. 

The Executive Team also recognised that the legal costs 
associated with disrepair claims could be reduced by 
directly employing a solicitor to deal with these claims 
on behalf of Wandle. The forecast saving from insourcing 
this service is £170k in 2022/23.
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5  Reinvest the financial returns we make from achieving our VFM objectives to 
optimise the economy, efficiency and effectiveness of our services and assets 
over the longer term (30 years)
It is vital that Wandle’s VFM Strategy provides the 
capacity for Wandle to make future investments into its 
homes and services. For example, making an increased 
investment in our properties to improve their overall 
condition would have the following benefits;

 � Increase in customer satisfaction

 � Reduction in future responsive repairs 

 � Potential reduction in disrepair claims

The VFM metric Earnings before Interest, Depreciation 
and Amortisation (Major Repairs Included) – EBITDA 
(MRI) gives a good indication of our capacity to make 
investments each year from our core operating surplus, 
discounting surpluses from any property sales. We 
recognise that effective investment is a powerful tool to 
address some of the challenges facing Wandle, including 
relatively poor customer satisfaction and a high level of 
responsive repair demand.

So, as part of our annual budgeting process, the 
Executive Team will review the EBITDA (MRI) forecast 
for the following five years to assess the capacity of 
the organisation to make further investments in our 
properties, technology or people. The minimum target for 
the EBITDA (MRI) surplus will be 110%, and we will allow a 
10% contingency for future year’s planning, increasing by 
5% each year as the planning time horizon expands.

The Executive team will review these targets and 
recommend any changes to the Board each year as part 
of the budget process. These targets will, of course, be 
set at a level to ensure Wandle’s compliance with its 
Golden Rules. 

VFM and the People Strategy 

We recognise that our enabling objective to ‘Be an 
Employer of Choice’ is key to delivering VFM, as it enables 
us to recruit and retain staff who will deliver consistently 
good value services to our customers. So, there is a clear 
link between this objective and the VFM Strategy. 

Value for Money and the New Homes Strategy

Our new homes growth strategy seeks to deliver well 
designed, sustainable, safe and affordable homes 
in South London. The strategy is supported by 3 
growth principles; strategic fit, financial viability and 
risk deliverability. 

The financial viability principles will ensure that we 
deliver more homes while achieving value for money 
and minimise use of working capital. Development 
opportunities are ‘filtered’ and/or prioritised against 
these principles to ensure investment is targeted to most 
relevant projects.

Value for Money and the Asset 
Management Strategy

The Asset Management Strategy is designed to ensure 
that Wandle’s investments into its homes provide Value 
for Money.

For example, when a property becomes empty, the 
asset management team carry out a VFM review of the 
property. This focuses on three different elements;

i. High maintenance and/or component replacement 
costs – disposal will be considered if maintenance or 
programmed replacement costs are likely to mean 
that the property will generate low surpluses or make 
losses over the long term

ii. Poor Net Present Value – where the NPV of the 
property is low due to a combination of high costs 
and low income. In practice this is often linked to 
point i)

iii. High Value – where the opportunity cost of owning 
the property is high – for example where the property 
can be sold on the open market and the proceeds 
used to make further investments into Wandle’s 
properties or services 

The work being carried out to understand the financial 
performance of Wandle’s different business stream 
and property types is providing valuable information to 
improve the accuracy of the maintenance cost and Net 
Present Value calculations, enabling the organisation 
to move from generic assumptions to assumptions 
based on the performance of specific tenures and 
property types. 

Our approach to VFM benchmarking and setting targets 

We have selected the L12 group of medium sized housing 
providers in London as our peer group for performance 
benchmarking, as most of the members are of a similar size 
and broadly similar stock tenure to Wandle.

The L12 group tends to work collaboratively, often sharing 
performance information and underlying issues openly, to a 
depth not available within benchmarking forums. This enables 
members to target improvements based on best practice 
shared within the group.  

The L12 group includes the following housing associations; 
Look Ahead, Hexagon, Newlon, Origin, Croydon Churches, 
Octavia, Phoenix, Shepherd’s Bush, Islington and Shoreditch, 
RHP and Gateway.

Wandle has faced some performance challenges in relation 
to complaints, customer satisfaction and tenant arrears. For 
these indicators, it will be practically impossible to improve 

performance to the median of our benchmarking group within 
a year. VFM targets in these areas are therefore increased 
in stages over two or more years until median performance 
is achieved. 

For other indicators, closer to the median, the targets are 
aimed at achieving median performance over six or twelve 
months. Where median performance is already exceeded, 
targets based on upper quartile performance targets are set. 

In the table below we have measured ourselves against 
the metrics in the Regulator for Social Housing’s (RSH) 
Value for Money Standard and Code. We have compared 
ourselves to national data (2020/21 global accounts) and 
the median performance of the L12 Group of 12 London 
housing providers of broadly similar size, whose directors 
meet together periodically with Wandle’s. This peer group 
benchmarking shows our performance against organisations 
operating in a similar context to Wandle.

Category 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 National Peer Group

 Actual  Actual Actual Projected Lower Median Upper Median

Reinvestment 1.55% 1.11% 1.06% 6.05% 3.97% 5.77% 8.24% 4.56%

New supply 0.51% 0.52% 0.32% 1.10% 0.52% 1.31% 1.97% 0.70%

Gearing 33% 32% 31% 33% 33% 44% 53% 41%

EBITDA MRI 143% 118% 80% 90% 134% 183% 248% 125%

Headline social 
housing cost per 
unit

£4,195 £4,765 £5,759 £5,699 £3,212 £3,731 £4,763 £5,883

Operating margin 
– Social Housing 
Lettings

36.9% 28.7% 21.6% 23.2% 22.2% 26.3% 32.6% 23.7%

Operating margin 
overall

33.3% 28.5% 20.0% 23.4% 18.1% 23.9% 28.2% 19.4%

Return on Capital 
Employed (ROCE)

3.13% 3.24% 2.66% 4.15% 2.71% 3.33% 4.20% 1.80%

* The peer group includes the following housing associations; Look Ahead, Hexagon, Newlon, Origin, 
Croydon Churches, Octavia, Phoenix, Shepherd’s Bush, Islington and Shoreditch, RHP, Gateway
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Reinvestment and new supply
Reinvestment is a measure of our financial investment 
in new and existing properties in the year, shown as a 
percentage of our total financial investment in properties 
at the beginning of the year. New supply is the percentage 
increase in number of properties owned.

While our levels of reinvestment and new development 
remain below the sector and peer group average in 
2021/22, this is largely as a result of a Board decision 
to reduce new supply activity while the organisation 
focused on disposing of our Solomon’s Passage 
development. The development was disposed of in 
September 2020, and the organisation is once again 
investing in new homes. We are in the early stages 
of the development of a scheme at Summerstown in 
Wimbledon, which will provide 39 rented and 54 social 
housing properties. In addition, we are acquiring some 
shared ownership properties and developing some small 
schemes which will be built on land that Wandle already 
owns. These new developments are forecast to increase 
our Reinvestment % to the third quartile using national 
benchmarking, and above the median for our peer group 
in 2022/23 and 2023/24.

During the year, we continued to plan and agree fire risk 
remediation work with our tenants and leaseholders. We 
have not yet got a complete picture of the expenditure 
required to address all the remediation issues, but we 
have provided for £1.3 million of expenditure which we 
were committed to at 31st March 2022.

At 31st March 2022 we were 97.7% compliant with 
Decent Homes standards. Our £7.5 million reinvestment 
programme in 2022/23 will be largely focused on 
achieving full compliance with Decent Homes by 
31 March 2023. Major component replacement 
programmes planned include windows, doors, 
bathrooms, kitchens and fire doors.

Gearing
Gearing is net debt as a percentage of the cost of 
our assets.

In August 2021 we agreed a release of a gearing 
covenant with one of our funders. This has opened up 
the opportunity to develop and acquire new properties, 
reintroducing investment in new supply alongside 
investment in our existing portfolio. As the table shows, 
our gearing ratio is strong when compared to our peer 
group and around the top quartile threshold based 
on national benchmarking. Our gearing is forecast to 
remain strong over both the short and longer term.

EBITDA (MRI) and Headline social 
housing cost per unit

EBITDA (MRI); Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, 
amortisation (major repairs included) as a percentage of 
interest payable.

In 2021/22, Wandle experienced a significant increase 
in demand for responsive repairs compared to budget. 
In the first quarter of the financial year, we identified 
the increased demand and began to track its financial 
consequences. At that time, it was uncertain whether 
the additional demand was related to the release of 
lockdown restrictions earlier in the year. However, the 
trend continued into the second quarter, and although 
the increased responsive repairs cost was not going 
to cause a breach of covenants, it had an impact on 
Wandle’s EBITDA (MRI) ratio, which was forecast to 
reduce to under 90%.

The Executive Team and Board recognised that the issue 
needed to be dealt with from a strategic perspective. 
It was going to be difficult to make changes to our 
strategic direction that would improve the position 
in 2021/22, but we could review our options for the 
medium term - 2022/23 to 2024/25. The acid test of the 
success of this review would be an improvement in our 
EBITDA (MRI) ratio. We therefore set up a Board working 
group to explore options and report back to the Board.

In summary these proposals were a mixture of strategic 
investment (In Building More Homes and Shared 
ownership purchases), treasury management and cost 
reduction, to create future capacity within our financial 
plan. The proposals enabled us to forecast an increase in 
our EBITDA (MRI) ratio to c.90% in 2022/23.

Headline Social Housing Cost per Unit; Total social housing 
costs divided by the number of social housing units owned 
or managed at the period end.

Headline Social Housing Cost per Unit is a key measure 
of cost efficiency. The increase in responsive repair costs 
in 2021/22 was the main contributor to a 20% increase 
in our Headline social housing cost per unit compared to 
2020/21. This increase brought us just below the median 
performance of the L12 peer group from 2020/21.

However, compared to national benchmarks, we have 
a relatively high Headline Social Housing Cost per Unit, 
(we are in the bottom quartile, with the first quartile 
being most efficient). We believe that the peer group 
analysis is the more relevant comparison, as London 
housing providers typically face significantly higher 
costs than those elsewhere in the country.

Wandle continues to target VFM savings and income 
generation in 2022/23. One-off savings and income 
generation forecast at £1,692,000 will come principally 
from bringing forward shared ownership acquisitions 
from future years, continued savings from increased 
DLO productivity. Annual savings forecast of £370,000 
include the ongoing benefits of the Build More Homes 
pilot programme and recruitment of a disrepair legal 
advisor, to take the place of outsourcing legal advice to 
third party solicitors.

We are currently completing out a review of our 
responsive repairs service, targeted at delivering 
improved performance and customer satisfaction. Any 
changes proposed to the delivery model will start to be 
implemented in 2022/23.

Operating margin – overall 
and for social housing

Overall Operating Margin; Overall operating surplus as a 
percentage of overall turnover.

Social Housing Operating Margin; Operating surplus from 
social housing lettings as a percentage of turnover from 
social housing lettings.

Social Housing Operating Margin is a key indicator of the 
financial health of our core social housing business. The 
performance of this measure has also been significantly 
impacted by the increase in responsive repair costs in 
2021/22, resulting in a lower Operating Margin than in 
2020/21.

We are now in the third quartile when compared with 
2020/21 national benchmarks and we are performing 
roughly in line with our peer group. Our Long-term 
Financial Plan forecasts steadily improving operating 
margins, as we realise our planned efficiency savings. 
This should provide additional financial capacity for 
reinvestment in our properties and new supply.

Our overall Operating Margin includes surpluses 
from shared ownership sales, and the impact of any 
property impairments (write down of property values). 
The measure is also broadly in line with our peer 
group median and in the third quartile of national 
benchmarking.

Return on capital employed
Operating surplus as a percentage of total assets, less 
current liabilities.

This measure, at 2.66% in 2021/22, has reduced by 18% 
from 2020/21. We are generating a higher Return on 
Capital Employed (ROCE) than our peer group, but in the 
fourth quarter nationally.

The reduction in 2021/22 ROCE was again primarily 
due to the increase in responsive repairs for the year. 
Included in operating expenditure was £0.9 million for 
fire remediation work. The provision for future work 
committed as at 31 March 2022 is £1.3 million. The 
level of shared ownership and other property sales has 
a big impact on ROCE, so housing providers with larger 
property sales programmes will tend to report a higher 
ROCE than Wandle.

New VFM performance indicators
In June 2022, we agreed a new set of Wandle VFM 
measures as part of our revised VFM strategy, which we 
will benchmark and monitor in 2022/23;

Lag indicators

 � Overall tenant satisfaction with landlord services

 � Formal complaints received per 1000 units

 � % void loss

 � Income collected as a % of income due

Current/Lead indicators

 � Return on Capital employed based on vacant 
possession market value (internal measure – 
not benchmarked)

 � % satisfaction with repairs delivered 
(transactional measure)

 � % of transactions through the MyWandle 
digital channels
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We have deliberately chosen a mixture of lag indicators 
(which highlight historical performance) and current/
lead indicators (which show current performance and 
emerging trends) as our VFM indicators to ensure that 
we have balanced view of our performance.

For example, ‘Overall satisfaction with Landlord Services’ 
is a backward looking measure, which will inevitably be 
influenced by tenants’ perceptions since first becoming 
Wandle tenants, potentially many years ago. By contrast, 
‘% satisfaction with repairs delivered (transactional 
measure)’ is the perception of a tenant about a repair at 
the point of completion, so this is a current, point-in-
time measure.

We recognise that we have a considerable amount of 
work to do to achieve median performance in the VFM 
indicators ‘Overall customer satisfaction with Landlord 
services’ and ‘Formal complaints received per 1,000 
properties p.a.’

However, one of our lead indicators shows that we are 
now delivering a good performance in a service area 
which we know is very important to our customers; 

‘% satisfaction with repairs delivered’, which averages 
over 90% customer satisfaction. There are early signs 
that this improvement is beginning to lead to increases 
customer satisfaction, with the key metric ‘Overall 
satisfaction with landlord services’ improving from 
31% in 2021/22 to 49% across the first two months of 
2022/23.

Income collection and void loss indicators are both in 
line with sector norms. ‘Return on Capital based on 
vacant possession market value’ is a new indicator for 
Wandle, which is useful for assessing alternative asset 
investment strategies (including, for example, the Build 
More Homes pilot programme).

We will continue to invest in our digital channels to 
increase the percentage of customer service access and 
information requests provided to the sector median 
of 10%.

Finally, we are not yet measuring and monitoring the 
social value outcomes delivered through the Helping 
Hands Fund; this assessment will be carried out in 
2022/23.

VFM indicator 2021/22
Actual

2022/23
Target

2020/21
Median 
Benchmark

20/21 Benchmark-
Housemark or L12?

Overall tenant satisfaction with landlord services 31% 50% 73% Housemark

Formal complaints received per 1000 units 263 200 5.19 Housemark

% void loss 1.1% 1.1% 1.1% L12

Income collected as a % of income due 101% 102% Data not 
available

Return on Capital employed based on VPMV Data not available

% satisfaction with repairs delivered 
(transactional measure) 96% 78% Data not 

available

% of transactions through the MyWandle 
digital channels 6% 10% 10% Housemark

Corporate 
Governance  
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Executive Team
The Executive Team are responsible for advising on and 
implementing strategy and policy and ensuring the 
implementation of decisions made by the Board and 
committees. They meet formally at least monthly. The 
members of the Executive Team are listed on page 3. 
Members of the Executive Team hold no interest in 
Wandle’s share capital.

Employees
We have a strategic objective of being “An employer of 
choice”.  We want to create a great place where people 
are not only proud to work but feel like they belong. 
The leadership is therefore committed to employee 
engagement and has put in place different forums to 
ensure that employee voice shapes how we lead and 
manage the organisation.

The Meet the CEO Sessions, Sounding Board 
(employee representative group), All Staff Briefings 
and conferences, and team meetings all play a key role 
in ensuring that employees are listened to and their 
suggestions are taken on board and actioned. The 
Sounding Board has been instrumental in championing 
various activities, including national events such as 
Mental Health and Carers Awareness. We also engage 
with our recognised Trade Union who offer a different 
perspective on employee wellbeing and engagement and 
are working towards Investors in People accreditation.

From time to time we seek feedback through external 
anonymous employee engagement surveys as part 
of our commitment to increasing employee voice to 
continuously improve our organisation.

Regulatory compliance
Wandle is regulated by the Regulator of Social Housing 
(RSH) and is required to comply with their Economic and 
Consumer Standards. This includes the requirement 
for the Board to formally certify compliance with the 
Governance and Financial Viability Standard.

The Board is satisfied that it has complied with the 
Standard and with the NHF Code of Governance 2020, 
which we formally adopted in 2021.

We continue to engage with the Regulator on a regular 
basis and in quarterly meetings as we work towards a  
re-grade from G2 to G1.

Modern slavery and human 
trafficking statement

Wandle’s Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking 
Statement is available on our website and details the 
actions we are taking to tackle modern slavery and raise 
awareness of the issue. Wandle is committed to ensuring 
that there is no modern slavery in its supply chains or in 
any part of the organisation.

Internal Controls
The Board has overall responsibility for establishing and 
maintaining the system of internal control for Wandle 
and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The internal control framework is designed to manage 
and reduce, rather than eliminate, the risk of failing to 
achieve business objectives. It can only provide the Board 
with reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against 
material misstatement or loss.

The Board has reviewed and approved its risk 
management framework, developing our approach to 
risk appetite and risk mitigation. The framework is a risk 
based approach to internal controls which are embedded 
within normal management and governance processes. 
This includes the regular evaluation of the nature and 
extent of risks to Wandle.

Internal controls assurance
Wandle’s Standing Orders set out the terms of reference 
for the Wandle Board and its committees. This includes 
the requirement for Board meetings to be held regularly 
and the schedule of matters reserved to the Board. 
The Board has conducted its annual review of the 
effectiveness of the system of internal control and 
the processes adopted by the Board in reviewing this 
together with the key elements of the control are set 
out below:

 � Fraud and Whistle-blowing

The Board has a policy on fraud which covers 
prevention, detection and reporting and is supported 
by regular awareness raising for employees. In addition 
a whistleblowing policy is in place that provides a 
framework for employees to report any wrongdoing. 
The Audit Committee monitors fraud and whistle-
blowing reports.

Legal Status
Wandle Housing Association Limited (WHA) is a 
Registered Society in accordance with the  
Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 
2014. The Association has charitable objectives and is a 
Registered Provider of Social Housing

Registered Society No: 19225R
Registered Provider No: L0277

Wandle Housing Association Board
The Wandle Board has ultimate responsibility for 
the governance and performance of Wandle and its 
subsidiary companies. The Board determines and directs 
the vision and strategy of the organisation and monitors 
and scrutinises its performance in delivering this. 
Members of the Wandle Board and its committees are 
listed on page 3.

At 31 March 2022 the Board comprised 11 board 
members, including 10 non-executives and one co-
opted executive member. One of the non-executives is a 
resident of the Association. The Board of Management 
meets at least six times per year (more often if required) 
in order for it to operate efficiently and give the right 
level of attention and consideration to relevant matters. 
It delegates certain responsibilities to Board committees. 
In October 2020 the Board commissioned consultants 
Campbell Tickell to conduct a governance review. From 
this review the Board approved that the Treasury Panel 
be formalised as a Committee and the formation of a 
Customer Experience Committee

The five standing Board committees are:

Audit and Risk Committee
The role of the Audit & Risk Committee is to provide 
assurance to the Board that Wandle has in place and 
operates appropriate controls to safeguard its assets, 
ensure financial viability and manage risks. In addition, 
the Committee reviews and monitors the integrity of the 
annual financial statements before submission to the 
Board. As part of this work the committee approves and 
monitors the work of the internal and external auditors 
and has a direct and regular line of communication with 
the auditors.

Asset Investment Committee
The role of the Asset Investment Committee is to oversee 
delivery of Wandle’s development programme, asset 
management strategy and repairs service. This includes 
approving the procurement, development and disposal 
of land and property within its delegated authority limits. 
In addition, the Committee ensures compliance with 
health and safety requirements in relation to Wandle’s 
property portfolio.

Customer Experience Committee
The role of the Customer Experience Committee is 
to challenge, scrutinise, and review services from a 
customer focused perspective.

The committee has responsibility for the monitoring 
and implementation of customer focused strategic 
objectives and delivery of the Wandle Service Offer 
to its customers. Its primary responsibility is ensuring 
the effective delivery of Wandle’s services to residents. 
This includes Repairs of all types, Disrepair, Building 
Safety, Lettings and Allocations, Resident involvement, 
Neighborhood Management, and Complaints. 
This committee comprises of Board members and 
resident members.

People and Governance Committee
The role of the People and Governance Committee is 
to review and make decisions on matters concerning 
human resources (HR), including Board Members, Staff, 
and temporary employees.  The Committee considers 
employment issues relating to the organisation, 
including significant staff structure and role changes, 
and staff terms and conditions, including remuneration. 
The committee also leads on Board Member succession, 
recruitment, and remuneration.

Treasury Committee
The role of the Treasury Committee is to oversee the 
development and delivery of Wandle’s Annual Treasury 
Strategy. The committee also reviews the Long-Term 
Financial Plan and associated stress and scenario tests 
and mitigations, reporting these to the Board for review 
and approval.
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Board member skills, 
experience and diversity

The Board is comprised of members with a range of 
different skills, experience and backgrounds. We publish 
information about all of our Board members on our 
website and this provides an insight into what each 
member brings to the Board.

We collect information about the diversity of our 
Board, as part of our commitment to ensuring that the 
organisation is representative of the diversity of the 
communities we serve.

As of 31st March 2022, the Board consisted of five female 
and six male members, with a range of different religions 
and ethnic backgrounds represented. The majority of our 
Board is aged between 45 and 64.

Going concern
The Board has approved the 2022/23 budget and Long-
Term Financial Plan (LTFP) which forecasts beyond a year 
from the date of signing of the Financial Statements.  
As part of the updates to the LTFP we perform a range 
of stress tests, including: Regulatory rent caps, Market 
disruption events including extraordinary inflation, 
Corporate risks aligned to the Corporate risk register 
and combinations of all three. The results show the plan 
remains resilient.

The budget is being used to manage the financial 
position during 2022/23 and the LTFP is ensuring 
future viability is maintained for the future.  Senior 
Management and Executive consistently monitor 
performance, which includes: regular treasury and 
management reporting, and covenant monitoring.

Wandle maintains a strong liquidity position to manage 
uncertainty, with £122m (£114m March 2021) of 
liquidity available for the coming year.

Therefore, whilst uncertainty exists at this time the 
Board has a reasonable expectation that the Group has 
adequate resources to continue in operational existence 
for the foreseeable future.  The Board, therefore, 
considers it appropriate for the Financial Statements to 
be prepared on a going concern basis.

Financial statements are published on Wandle’s website 
in accordance with UK legislation governing the 
preparation and dissemination of financial statements. 
The Board is responsible for the maintenance and 
integrity of the corporate and financial information 
included on Wandle’s website.

By order of the Board
Valerie Vaughan-Dick, MBE   |  Chair
13 July 2022

 � Risk Management

The Board confirms there is an ongoing process for 
identifying, evaluating and monitoring significant 
risks faced by Wandle. During the year the Board 
has reviewed and improved its risk management 
framework. The stress testing of the long term 
financial plan has also been further developed. 
There is a formal process for reviewing and updating 
the risk register, which is regularly reported to the 
Audit Committee and Board. In addition the Audit 
Committee conducts regular deep dives on key risks 
and the Board holds an annual risk workshop.

 � Internal Audit

Wandle’s internal audit programme is designed 
with a clear link to the risk register and is overseen 
and monitored by the Audit Committee, who review 
all internal audit reports. Internal auditors oversee 
the tracking of internal audit actions and spot 
check completed actions. This provides additional 
independent assurance to the Audit Committee.

 � Policies and Procedures

Wandle has a framework of policies and procedures 
covering internal controls. These include: Standing 
Orders, data protection, health and safety, accounting 
and treasury. In addition it has a code of conduct for 
employees which sets out probity requirements as 
well as employment procedures which ensure that 
employees are suitably qualified to manage activities 
and risk.

 � Information and Financial Reporting Systems

The Board reviews and approves a long-term financial 
plan and budget each year and monitors these by 
way of monthly management accounts and forecasts 
for the remainder of the financial year. They also 
review detailed performance reports on a quarterly 
basis, monitoring the achievement of key business 
objectives, targets and outcomes.

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will be held 
21 September 2022.

Auditors
All of the current board members have taken all the steps 
that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware 
of any information needed by the association’s auditors 

for the purposes of their audit and to establish that the 
auditors are aware of that information. The directors are 
not aware of any relevant audit information of which the 
auditors are unaware.

A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO LLP as 
auditors of the Association is to be proposed at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Board member responsibilities
The Board is responsible for preparing the report of the 
Board and the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and regulations.

Co-operative and Community Benefit Society law 
requires the Board to prepare financial statements for 
each financial year. Under those regulations the Board 
have elected to prepare the financial statements in 
accordance with UK Accounting Standards, including 
FRS102 which is the Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland. The 
financial statements are required by law to give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs and the income and 
expenditure of the Group and Association for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Board is 
required to:

 � Select suitable accounting policies and then apply 
them consistently

 � Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent

 � State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards 
and the Statement of Recommended Practice have 
been followed, subject to any material departures 
disclosed and explained in the financial statements

 � Prepare the financial statements on the going concern 
basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 
Group will continue in business.

The Board is responsible for keeping adequate 
accounting records which disclose with reasonable 
accuracy at any time the financial position of the 
Group and enable them to ensure that the Group’s 
financial statements comply with the Co-operative and 
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Housing and 
Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for 
Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2022. They 
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the 
Group and taking steps to prevent and detect fraud and 
other irregularities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WANDLE HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED 

 

Opinion on the financial statements 

In our opinion, the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and the Association’s affairs at 31 March 2022 and of the 
Group’s and the Association’s surplus for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and 
• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, 

the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies (Group Accounts) Regulations 1969, the Housing and 
Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2022. 

 

We have audited the financial statements of Wandle Housing Association Limited (“the Association”) and its subsidiaries 
(“the Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2022, which comprise the Consolidated and Association statement of 
comprehensive income, the Consolidated and Association statement of changes in reserves, the Consolidated and 
Association balance sheet, the Consolidated cash flow statement and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is 
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable law. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Independence 

We remain independent of the Group and Association in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the board members’ use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.  

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions 
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group’s or the Association’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the board with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections 
of this report. 

Other information 

The board are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Strategic Report and Financial Statement for the Group and the Association, other than the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information including the Board 
Members’ Report and Strategic Report and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If 
we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether 
there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based 
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information we are 
required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

Wandle Housing Association Limited 

33 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WANDLE HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED (CONTINUED) 

 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where we are required by the Co-operative or Community 
Benefit Societies Act 2014 or the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 to report to you if, in our opinion: 

• the information given in the Report of the Board for the financial year for which the financial statements are 
prepared is not consistent with the financial statements; 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Association; or 
• a satisfactory system of control has not been maintained over transactions; or 
• the parent Association financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

 

Responsibilities of the board 

As explained more fully in the board member responsibilities statement, the board is responsible for the preparation of the 
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the board 
members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the board are responsible for assessing the Group’s and Association’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the board either intend to liquidate the Group or the Association or to cease operations, or have no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs 
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with 
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent 
to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. 

Based on our understanding of the Association and the industry in which it operates, we identified that the principal laws 
and regulations that directly affect the financial statements to be the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008, the Co-operative 
and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 and relevant Tax Legislation. We assessed the extent of compliance with these 
laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items. 

In addition the Association is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance could 
have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the imposition of fines or 
litigation. We identified the following areas as those most likely to have such an effect: Employment Law, Data Protection 
and Health and Safety Legislation. In order to help identify instances of non-compliance with other laws and regulations 
that may have a material effect on the financial statements, we made enquiries of management and those charged with 
Governance about whether the entity is in compliance with such laws and regulations and we inspected any relevant 
regulatory and legal correspondence.   

Audit procedures capable of detecting irregularities including fraud performed by the engagement team included: 

• Performing analytical procedures to identify unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of 
material misstatement due to fraud. Areas of identified risk are then tested substantively; 

• Discussions with management, including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with 
laws and regulations and fraud; 

 

Wandle’s Strategic Report and Financial Statements

34 35



Wandle Housing Association Limited 

34 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WANDLE HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED (CONTINUED) 

• Reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and reviewing 
correspondence with HMRC and the Regulator to identify any actual or potential frauds or any potential 
weaknesses in internal control which could result in fraud susceptibility; 

• Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations;

• Reviewing items included in the fraud register as well as the results of internal audit’s investigation into these 
matters; 

• Challenging assumptions made by management in their significant accounting estimates in particular in relation to 
the recoverable amount of assets and the appropriate allocation of costs between land and structure and the 
assumptions used in determining the pension liability; 

• Carrying out detailed testing, on a sample basis, of transactions and balances agreeing to appropriate documentary 
evidence to verify the completeness, existence and accuracy of the reported financial statements; and 

• In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness of journal
entries and other adjustments. 

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed and the further removed non-compliance with laws and 
regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we are to become aware 
of it. 

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, recognising 
that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations or through collusion. There 
are inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed and the further removed non-compliance with laws and 
regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we are to become aware 
of it. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting 
Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the members of the Association, as a body, in accordance with in accordance with the Housing 
and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014.  Our audit work has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the Association’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an 
auditor’s report and for no other purpose.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the Association and the members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for 
the opinions we have formed. 

Elizabeth Kulczycki (Senior Statutory Auditor)  
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, statutory auditor  
Gatwick 
27 July 2022

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127). 
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Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Group Association 
2022 2021 2022 2021 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Notes 

Turnover 3 59,417 57,295 60,287 57,385 

Cost of sales 3 (5,856) (4,034) (5,856) (4,034) 

Operating costs 3 (41,662) (36,935) (41,666) (36,934) 

Surplus on sale of fixed assets 3,5 12,059 12,898 12,059 12,898 

Operating surplus 23,958 29,224 24,824 29,315 

Movement in fair value of investment property 6 261 157 261 157 

Gift aid received - - - - 

Interest receivable and similar income 7 1,293 3,487 1,293 3,498 

Interest payable and similar charges 8 (13,707) (13,625) (13,725) (13,636) 

Surplus on ordinary activities before tax 11 11,805 19,243 12,653 19,334 

Tax on surplus on ordinary activities 12 - - - - 

Surplus after tax for the year 11,805 19,243 12,653 19,334 

Other comprehensive income 

Movements in fair value of effective interest rate swaps 8 9,386 5,008 9,386 5,008 

Actuarial gains / (losses) on defined benefit pension scheme 30 903 (3,173) 903 (3,173) 

Total comprehensive income 22,094 21,078 22,942 21,169 

All activities are continuing. 

The notes on pages 41 to 68 form part of these financial statements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WANDLE HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED (CONTINUED) 

• Reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and reviewing 
correspondence with HMRC and the Regulator to identify any actual or potential frauds or any potential 
weaknesses in internal control which could result in fraud susceptibility; 

• Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations;

• Reviewing items included in the fraud register as well as the results of internal audit’s investigation into these 
matters; 

• Challenging assumptions made by management in their significant accounting estimates in particular in relation to 
the recoverable amount of assets and the appropriate allocation of costs between land and structure and the 
assumptions used in determining the pension liability; 

• Carrying out detailed testing, on a sample basis, of transactions and balances agreeing to appropriate documentary 
evidence to verify the completeness, existence and accuracy of the reported financial statements; and 

• In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness of journal
entries and other adjustments. 

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed and the further removed non-compliance with laws and 
regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we are to become aware 
of it. 

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, recognising 
that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations or through collusion. There 
are inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed and the further removed non-compliance with laws and 
regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we are to become aware 
of it. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting 
Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the members of the Association, as a body, in accordance with in accordance with the Housing 
and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014.  Our audit work has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the Association’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an 
auditor’s report and for no other purpose.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the Association and the members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for 
the opinions we have formed. 

Elizabeth Kulczycki (Senior Statutory Auditor)  
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, statutory auditor  
Gatwick 
27 July 2022

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127). 
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Statement of changes in reserves for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Group 
Hedge reserve revenue reserve Total 

£’000 £’000 £’000 

Total reserves at 1 April 2020 (30,511) 168,643 138,132  
Surplus for the year  -  19,243  19,243  
Movement in the fair value of financial instruments 5,008 -  5,008 
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension scheme -  (3,172)  (3,172)  
Total reserves at 31 March 2021 (25,503) 184,714 159,211 
Surplus for the year - 11,805  11,805 
Movement in the fair value of financial instruments 9,386 - 9,386 
Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension scheme - 903 903 
Total reserves at 31 March 2022 (16,117) 197,422 181,305 

Association 
Hedge reserve revenue reserve Total 

£’000 £’000 £’000 

Total reserves at 1 April 2020 (30,511) 175,796 145,285 
Surplus for the year  - 19,334 19,334 
Movement in the fair value of financial instruments 5,008 - 5,008 
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension scheme - (3,173) (3,173) 
Total reserves at 31 March 2021 (25,503) 191,957 166,454 
Surplus for the year 12,653 12,653 
Movement in the fair value of financial instruments 9,386 - 9,386 
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension scheme - 903 903 
Total reserves at 31 March 2022 (16,117) 205,513 189,396 

The notes on pages 41 to 68 form part of these financial statements. 
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Balance sheet at 31 March 2022 
Registered Society number 19225R 

Group Association 
2022 2021 2022 2021 

Notes £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Fixed assets 
Intangible assets 13 2,810  2,889  2,810  2,889  
Tangible fixed assets – housing properties 14 849,185  853,499  857,455  861,728  
Tangible fixed assets – other 15 143  278  143  278  
Investment properties 16 7,570  7,360  7,570  7,360  
Investments – Finance loans & Equity investments 18 421  404  421  404  
Investments – Home buy loans 19 1,782  1,782  1,782  1,782  
Total fixed assets 861,911  866,212  870,181  874,441  

Current assets 
Properties for sale 20 5,324  11,109  5,324  11,109  
Debtors 21 5,905  5,296  5,905  5,276  
Cash and cash equivalents 22 54,421  49,745  54,414  49,745  

65,650  66,150  65,643  66,130  

Creditors – amounts falling due within one year 23 (29,041) (29,539) (29,213) (30,505) 
Net current assets 36,609  36,611 36,430  35,625  

Total assets less current liabilities 899,520 902,823 906,611 910,066 

Creditors – amounts falling due after more than one year 24 (717,215) (743,612) (717,215) (743,612) 

(717,215) (743,612) (717,215) (743,612) 

Total assets less total liabilities 181,305 159,211 189,396 166,454 

Capital and reserves 
Non equity share capital 32 - - - - 
Revenue reserves 197,422  184,714 205,513  191,957  
Hedge reserves (16,117) (25,503) (16,117) (25,503) 

Total capital and reserves 181,305 159,211 189,396 166,454 

The notes on pages 41 to 68 form part of these financial statements. 

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Management on 13 July 2022 and signed on behalf of the Board of 
Management. 

Valerie Vaughan-Dick Paul Phillips  Simon Goulding 

Chair of Board Chair Audit and Risk Committee Company Secretary
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Group cashflow statement for the Year ended 31 March 2022 

 

  2022 2021 
  £’000 £’000 
 Notes   
Cashflow from operating activities    
Operating cashflows 33 37,391 34,074 
    
Cash inflow from investing activities    
Construction of properties  (9,229) (9,503) 
Investment in intangible assets 13 (536) (594) 
Purchase of other fixed assets 15 (43) (88) 
Homebuy loans redeemed 19 - (138) 
Interest received 7 68 301  
Net cash used in investing activities  (9,740) (10,022) 
    
    
Cashflow form financing activities    
Repayment of borrowings  (9,268) (6,144) 

Interest paid  (13,707) (13,636) 
Net cash used in financing activities  (22,975) (19,780) 
    
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  4,676 4,272  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  49,745 45,473  
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  54,421 49,745  
    
Cash and cash equivalents consist off:    
Cash at bank, cash in hand, short-term investments & deposits 22 54,421 49,745 

    
Total cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2022  54,421 49,745 

    
    

 

 

 

The notes on pages 39 to 66 form part of these financial statements. 
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1 Accounting policies 

 

Wandle Housing Association (the “Association”) is registered with the Financial Conduct Authority under the Co-operative and Community 
Benefits Societies Act 2014 and is registered with the Regulator of Social Housing as a social housing provider. It is a public benefit entity. 

  

The Association and the Group (which includes the Association and its subsidiaries Ravensbourne Developments Limited, Delta Homes 
Limited and Unitworthy Property Management Limited) are incorporated in England. These consolidated financial statements are 
presented with amounts rounded to GBP thousands. GBPis the Group and Association’s functional currency.  

 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable law and UK accounting standards (United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice) which for the Association includes the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 (and related 
group accounts regulations), the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008, FRS 102 “the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United 
Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland,” the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) for Registered Social Housing Providers 2018, 
“Accounting by registered social housing providers”, the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2022. 

 

The accounts are prepared under the historical cost basis except for the modification to a fair value basis for certain financial instruments 
and investment properties as specified in the accounting policies below.  

 

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also 
requires Group management to exercise judgement in applying the Group's accounting policies. 

 

Disclosure exemptions  

In preparing the separate financial statements of the Association, advantage has been taken of the following disclosure exemptions 
available in FRS 102: 

 

• Only one reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the period has been presented as the 
reconciliations for the Group and the Association would be identical; 

• No cash flow statement has been presented for the Association 
• Disclosures in respect of the Association’s financial instruments have not been presented as equivalent disclosures have been 

provided in respect of the Group 
• No disclosure has been given for the aggregate remuneration of the key management personnel of the Association as their 

remuneration is included in the totals for the Group 
 

The following principal accounting policies have been applied: 

 

Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements present the results of the Association and its subsidiaries Ravensbourne Developments Limited and 
Delta Homes Limited as if they formed a single entity. Intercompany transactions and balances between group companies are therefore 
eliminated in full. Unitworthy Property Management Limited is not included in the consolidation as it is considered immaterial. 

 

Going concern 

The Board has approved the 2022/23 budget and Long-Term Financial Plan which forecasts beyond a year from the date of signing of the 
Financial Statements.  As part of the updates to the Long-Term Financial Plan we perform stress tests, including: Regulatory Intervention 
including rent caps, Market disruption events including extraordinary inflation, Corporate risks aligned to the Corporate risk register and 
combinations of all three. The results show the plan remains resilient. 

 

The budget is being used to manage the financial position during 2022/23 and the LTFP is ensuring future viability is maintained for the 
future.  Senior Management and Executive consistently monitor performance, which includes: regular treasury and management 
reporting, and covenant monitoring. 

 

The notes on pages 41 to 68 form part of these financial statements.
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Wandle maintains a strong liquidity position to manage uncertainty, with £122m (£114m March 2021) of liquidity available for the coming 
year. 

 

Therefore, whilst uncertainty exists, the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future.  The Board, therefore, considers it appropriate for the Financial Statements to be 
prepared on a going concern basis. 

 

Income 

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The Group generates the following material income 
streams: 

• rental income receivable (after deducting lost rent from void properties available for letting), 
• first tranche sales of Low-Cost Home Ownership housing properties developed for sale  
• service charges receivable 
• income from Homebuy activities 
• revenue grants 
• proceeds from the sale of land and property 

 

Rental income is recognised from the point when properties under development reach practical completion and are formally let, income 
from first tranche sales and sales of properties built for sale is recognised at the point of legal completion of the sale.  

 

Revenue grants are recognised when the conditions for receipt of agreed grant funding have been met. Income from deferred capital 
grants is recognised in a systematic basis over the useful economic life of the asset (usually the property’s structure) for which it was 
received. 

 

Service charges  

The Group adopts the variable method for calculating and charging service charges to its leaseholders and shared owners and the fixed 
method for calculating and charging service charges to its tenants. Expenditure is recorded when a service is provided and charged to the 
relevant service charge account or to a sinking fund. Income is recorded based on the estimated amounts chargeable with any surplus or 
deficit adjusted against the following years charge. 

 

Management of units owned by others  

Management fees receivable and reimbursed expenses are shown as income and included in management fees receivable. Costs of 
carrying out the management contracts and rechargeable expenses are included in operating costs. 

 

Schemes managed by agents  

Income is shown as rent receivable and management fees payable to agents are included in operating costs. 

 

Taxation  

The Association is an exempt charity and its activities do not generally give rise to a tax liability. The Association’s subsidiaries, Delta 
Homes Limited and Ravensbourne Developments Limited, do not have charitable objects and are subject to taxation. However, no charge 
to taxation arises on the results of the subsidiary undertakings as all profits are paid across to the Association via Gift Aid. 

 

 

 

 

Value added tax  

The Group charges Value Added Tax (VAT) on some of its income and is able to recover part of the VAT it incurs on expenditure. The 
financial statements include VAT to the extent that it is suffered by the Group and not recoverable from HM Revenue and Customs. 
Recoverable VAT arises from partially exempt activities and is credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
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Finance costs 

Finance costs are charged to profit or loss over the term of the debt using the effective interest rate method so that the amount charged is 
at a constant rate on the carrying amount. Issue costs are initially recognised as a reduction in the proceeds of the associated facility and 
are amortised over the life of the facility. 

Pension costs 

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme where the amount charged to the Income and expenditure account represents 
the contributions payable to the scheme in respect of the accounting period. A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit 
plan under which the group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further 
amounts.  

The group also participates in the multi-employer defined benefit Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS). The difference between the fair 
value of the assets held in the group's defined benefit pension scheme and the scheme's liabilities measured on an actuarial basis using 
the projected unit method are recognised in the group's balance sheet as a pension asset or liability as appropriate. The carrying value of 
any resulting pension scheme asset is restricted to the extent that the group can recover the surplus either through reduced contributions 
in the future or through refunds from the scheme. 

 

Holiday pay accrual 

A liability is recognised to the extent of any unused holiday pay entitlement which has accrued at the balance sheet date and carried 
forward to future periods. This is measured at the undiscounted salary cost of the future holiday entitlement so accrued, at the balance 
sheet date. 

 

Termination benefits  

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the group is demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal 
to a formal detailed plan to terminate employment. 

 

Tangible fixed assets - Housing properties  

Housing properties constructed or acquired (including land) on the open market since the date of transition to FRS 102 are stated at cost 
less depreciation and impairment (where applicable). 

 

The cost of housing land and property includes the cost of acquiring land and buildings, development costs, interest capitalised during the 
development period, directly attributable administration costs and expenditure incurred in respect of improvements which comprise the 
modernisation and extension of existing properties. 

 

Directly attributable administration costs include capitalised interest calculated, on a proportional basis, using finance costs on borrowing 
which has been drawn in order to finance the relevant construction or acquisition. Where housing properties are under construction, 
finance costs are only capitalised where construction is on-going and has not been interrupted or terminated. 

 

Expenditure on major refurbishment to properties is capitalised where the works increase the net rental stream over the life of the 
property. An increase in the net rental stream may arise through an increase in the net rental income, a reduction in future maintenance 
costs, or a subsequent extension in the life of the property. All other repair and replacement expenditure is charged to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income. 

 

Mixed developments are held within fixed assets – housing properties are accounted for at cost less depreciation. Commercial elements of 
mixed developments are held as investment properties. 

 

Housing properties under construction, excluding the estimated cost of the element of shared ownership properties expected to be sold in 
first tranche, are included in Tangible fixed assets and held at cost less any impairment, and are transferred to completed properties when 
ready for letting. 
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When housing properties are developed for sale to another social landlord, the cost is dealt with in current assets under housing 
properties and stock for sale. 

 

Gains and losses on disposals of housing properties are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount (as adjusted for 
impairment as appropriate) and incidental costs of sales and recognised within gain/loss on disposal of fixed assets in the statement of 
comprehensive income. 

 

Depreciation of housing property  

Housing land and property is split between land, structure and other major components that are expected to require replacement over 
time with substantially different economic lives. 

 

Land is not depreciated on account of its indefinite useful economic life. 

 

The portion of shared ownership property retained or expected to be retained is not depreciated on account of the high residual value. 
Neither the depreciable amount nor the expected annual depreciation charge for such assets is considered material, individually or in 
aggregate. 

 

Assets under construction are not depreciated until they are completed and ready for use to ensure that they are depreciated only in 
periods in which economic benefits are expected to be consumed. 

 

Housing properties are split between the structure and the major components which require periodic replacement. The costs of 
replacement or restoration of these components are capitalised and depreciated over the determined average useful economic life on a 
straight-line basis as follows: 

 

Description       Economic useful life (years)  

Structures        125  

Kitchens        20  

Bathrooms       30  

Windows        30  

Electrical wiring       30  

Roofs        60  

Boilers        15  

Lifts        25 

Central Heating Systems (excluding Boilers)     20  

Fire Compartmentalisation      15 

Fire remediation work will be capitalised when it; 

• Is a new cost integral to operating the asset in the manner intended by management; 
• Is a new cost integral to meeting regulatory requirements for the asset to remain in use; 
• Meets normal capitalisation requirements – by generating increased income; 
• Meets normal capitalisation requirements – by reducing future maintenance costs; 
• Meets normal capitalisation requirements – by significantly extending useful economic life. 

 

During the year ended 31 March 2022 there has been expenditure of approx. £1.3m (2021: £0.2m) which relates to compartmentalisation 
of ceilings, walls, roofs and cellars as a fire-retardant measure. This expenditure has been capitalised and is consistent with historic 
treatment. 

This work is anticipated to have a useful life concurrent with that of the component. 
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Shared ownership properties and staircasing  

Under low-cost home ownership arrangements, the Group disposes of a long lease on low-cost home ownership housing units for a share 
ranging between 25% and 75% of value. The buyer has the right to purchase further proportions up to 100% based on the market 
valuation of the property at the time each purchase transaction is completed. The exercise of this right to purchase additional shares in 
the property is known as ‘staircasing’. 

 

Low-cost home ownership properties are split proportionately between current and fixed assets based on the element relating to 
expected first tranche sales. The first tranche proportion is classed as a current asset, and related sales proceeds are included in turnover. 
The remaining proportion is classed as a fixed asset and included in completed housing property at cost less any provision for impairment. 
Sales of subsequent tranches (staircasing) will be treated as a part disposal of fixed assets. 

 

For shared ownership accommodation that the Group is responsible for, it is the Group’s policy to maintain them in a continuous state of 
sound repair. Maintenance of other shared ownership properties is the responsibility of the shared owner. Any impairment in the value of 
such properties is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

 

Allocation of costs for mixed tenure and shared ownership developments  

 

Costs are allocated to the appropriate tenure where it is possible to specify which tenure the costs relate to. Where it is not possible to 
relate costs to a specific tenure, costs are allocated on a floor area or unit basis, as appropriate for each scheme. 

 

Tangible fixed assets – Other 

 

Other tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

 

The group adds to the carrying amount of an item of fixed assets the cost of replacing part of such an item if the replacement part is 
expected to provide incremental future benefits to the group. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. Repairs and 
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred. 

 

Depreciation of other tangible fixed assets 

 

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other assets is charged to allocate the cost of assets less their residual value over their estimated 
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives range is as follows: 

 

Asset Category     Years  

Freehold Offices     25  

Leasehold Improvements    5  

Computer Equipment     3  

Major Business System / Database   5 - 20 (specific to system)  

Motor Vehicles     3  

Other Assets, Office and Estate Equipment   4 

 

Recycled capital grant fund  

On the occurrence of certain relevant events, primarily the sale of dwellings, the Regulator of Social Housing (RSH) can direct the 
Association to recycle capital grants or to make repayments of the recoverable amount. The Group adopts a policy of recycling, for which a 
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valuation of the property at the time each purchase transaction is completed. The exercise of this right to purchase additional shares in 
the property is known as ‘staircasing’. 

 

Low-cost home ownership properties are split proportionately between current and fixed assets based on the element relating to 
expected first tranche sales. The first tranche proportion is classed as a current asset, and related sales proceeds are included in turnover. 
The remaining proportion is classed as a fixed asset and included in completed housing property at cost less any provision for impairment. 
Sales of subsequent tranches (staircasing) will be treated as a part disposal of fixed assets. 

 

For shared ownership accommodation that the Group is responsible for, it is the Group’s policy to maintain them in a continuous state of 
sound repair. Maintenance of other shared ownership properties is the responsibility of the shared owner. Any impairment in the value of 
such properties is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

 

Allocation of costs for mixed tenure and shared ownership developments  

 

Costs are allocated to the appropriate tenure where it is possible to specify which tenure the costs relate to. Where it is not possible to 
relate costs to a specific tenure, costs are allocated on a floor area or unit basis, as appropriate for each scheme. 

 

Tangible fixed assets – Other 

 

Other tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

 

The group adds to the carrying amount of an item of fixed assets the cost of replacing part of such an item if the replacement part is 
expected to provide incremental future benefits to the group. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. Repairs and 
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred. 

 

Depreciation of other tangible fixed assets 

 

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other assets is charged to allocate the cost of assets less their residual value over their estimated 
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives range is as follows: 

 

Asset Category     Years  

Freehold Offices     25  

Leasehold Improvements    5  

Computer Equipment     3  

Major Business System / Database   5 - 20 (specific to system)  

Motor Vehicles     3  

Other Assets, Office and Estate Equipment   4 

 

Recycled capital grant fund  

On the occurrence of certain relevant events, primarily the sale of dwellings, the Regulator of Social Housing (RSH) can direct the 
Association to recycle capital grants or to make repayments of the recoverable amount. The Group adopts a policy of recycling, for which a 
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any impairment losses. Any losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in Other operating 
expenses. 

 

Recoverable amount of rental and other trade receivables  

The Group estimates the recoverable value of rental and other receivables and impairs the debtor based on these estimates. 

 

Concessionary loans 

Concessionary loans are those loans made or received by the Group that are made:   

• To further its public benefit objectives,  
• At a rate of interest which is below the prevailing market rate of interest  

 
These loans are measured at the amount advanced at the inception of the loan less amounts received and any provisions for impairment. 
Any associated grant is recognised as deferred income until the loan is redeemed.  

The Group has several arrangements that are considered to be concessionary loans: 

 

Homebuy  

Under the Homebuy scheme and the Key Worker Living Initiative, the Group receives Social Housing Grant representing a percentage of 
the open market purchase price of a property in order to advance interest-free loans to a homebuyer. 

 

Easybuy  

Easybuy loans are shared equity loans secured by way of a second charge on the property where the buyer could purchase the home at 
85% of its value, with Wandle retaining a 15% charge against the title. The loans can be repaid at any time within the loan agreement, the 
amount of which is dependent on the market value of the property at the date of repayment. The assets are recorded at fair value, being 
the estimated amount receivable by the group, discounted to present day values. Interest is payable after 5 years and the 15% charge 
becomes payable to Wandle when the homeowner chooses to sell their property. 

 

Rent and service charge agreements  

The Group sometimes plans with individuals and households for deferred payments of rent and service charge arrears. These 
arrangements are effectively loans granted at nil interest rate. 

 

Loans, Investments and short-term deposits  

All loans, investments and short-term deposits held by the Group are classified as basic financial instruments in accordance with FRS 102. 
These instruments are initially recorded at the transaction price less any transaction costs (historic cost). FRS 102 requires that basic 
financial instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment losses. 
Loans and investments that are payable or receivable within one year are not discounted. 

 

Financial liabilities and equity  

Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument's contractual obligations, rather than 
the financial instrument's legal form. 

 

Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet consists of cash at bank, in hand, deposits and short-term investments with an original 
maturity of three months or less. 

 

Derivative instruments and hedge accounting  
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separate fund is maintained. Any grant which has not been used within a three-year period will be repayable to the RSH with interest. Any 
unused recycled capital grant held within the recycled capital grant fund, which it is anticipated will not be used within one year is 
disclosed in the balance sheet under "creditors due after more than one year". The remainder is disclosed under "creditors due within one 
year". 

 

Investment properties 

 Investment properties consist of commercial properties and other properties not held for social benefit or for use in the business. They 
are properties which are held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both. Investment properties are measured at 
cost on initial recognition and subsequently carried at fair value determined annually by external valuers and derived from the current 
market rents and investment property yields for comparable real estate, adjusted if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or 
condition of the specific asset. No depreciation is provided. Changes in fair value are recognised in income or expenditure. Rental income 
from these properties is taken to revenue. 

 

Impairment of fixed assets 

Tangible fixed assets (mainly housing properties) are assessed for indicators of impaired value at each reporting date. Where indicators 
are identified, assets are grouped into Cash Generating Units (CGUs), which are typically housing schemes (several smaller schemes may 
be grouped geographically into a single CGU). A detailed assessment is then undertaken to determine each CGUs recoverable amount.  

The recoverable amount will be the higher of; 

• fair value less costs to sell or; 
• Existing Use Valuation for Social Housing (EUV-SH) or;  
• Value in Use (in respect of assets held for their service potential) (VIU-SP). As allowed by Housing SORP 2014 the Group uses 

Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) as a reasonable estimate of VIU-SP.  

Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU is deemed to exceed its recoverable amount, and it has previously had an increase in its 
value credited to the Revaluation Reserve, the resulting impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. However, if an 
impairment loss exceeds the accumulated revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve for an asset or CGU, the excess will be recognised 
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  

 

Properties held for sale  

 

Properties held for sale are completed properties, including housing properties developed for transfer to other registered providers; 
properties developed for outright sale and shared ownership properties. For shared ownership properties the value held as stock is the 
estimated cost to be sold as a first tranche. 

 

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises materials, direct labour and direct 
development overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated sales proceeds after allowing for all further costs to completion and 
selling costs. 

An assessment of whether there is any impairment is made at each reporting date. Where an impairment loss is identified, it is 
immediately recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

On disposal, sales proceeds are included in turnover and the costs of sales, including costs incurred in the development of the properties, 
marketing and other incidental costs are included in operating expenses. 

 

Financial instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument. 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered. An equity 
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting all its liabilities. 

 

 

Debtors and creditors  

Debtors and creditors with no stated interest rate and receivable or payable within one year are recorded initially at transaction price less 
attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less 
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Loans, Investments and short-term deposits  

All loans, investments and short-term deposits held by the Group are classified as basic financial instruments in accordance with FRS 102. 
These instruments are initially recorded at the transaction price less any transaction costs (historic cost). FRS 102 requires that basic 
financial instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment losses. 
Loans and investments that are payable or receivable within one year are not discounted. 

 

Financial liabilities and equity  

Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument's contractual obligations, rather than 
the financial instrument's legal form. 

 

Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet consists of cash at bank, in hand, deposits and short-term investments with an original 
maturity of three months or less. 

 

Derivative instruments and hedge accounting  
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any impairment losses. Any losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in Other operating 
expenses. 

 

Recoverable amount of rental and other trade receivables  

The Group estimates the recoverable value of rental and other receivables and impairs the debtor based on these estimates. 

 

Concessionary loans 

Concessionary loans are those loans made or received by the Group that are made:   

• To further its public benefit objectives,  
• At a rate of interest which is below the prevailing market rate of interest  

 
These loans are measured at the amount advanced at the inception of the loan less amounts received and any provisions for impairment. 
Any associated grant is recognised as deferred income until the loan is redeemed.  

The Group has several arrangements that are considered to be concessionary loans: 

 

Homebuy  

Under the Homebuy scheme and the Key Worker Living Initiative, the Group receives Social Housing Grant representing a percentage of 
the open market purchase price of a property in order to advance interest-free loans to a homebuyer. 

 

Easybuy  

Easybuy loans are shared equity loans secured by way of a second charge on the property where the buyer could purchase the home at 
85% of its value, with Wandle retaining a 15% charge against the title. The loans can be repaid at any time within the loan agreement, the 
amount of which is dependent on the market value of the property at the date of repayment. The assets are recorded at fair value, being 
the estimated amount receivable by the group, discounted to present day values. Interest is payable after 5 years and the 15% charge 
becomes payable to Wandle when the homeowner chooses to sell their property. 

 

Rent and service charge agreements  

The Group sometimes plans with individuals and households for deferred payments of rent and service charge arrears. These 
arrangements are effectively loans granted at nil interest rate. 

 

Loans, Investments and short-term deposits  

All loans, investments and short-term deposits held by the Group are classified as basic financial instruments in accordance with FRS 102. 
These instruments are initially recorded at the transaction price less any transaction costs (historic cost). FRS 102 requires that basic 
financial instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment losses. 
Loans and investments that are payable or receivable within one year are not discounted. 

 

Financial liabilities and equity  

Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument's contractual obligations, rather than 
the financial instrument's legal form. 

 

Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet consists of cash at bank, in hand, deposits and short-term investments with an original 
maturity of three months or less. 

 

Derivative instruments and hedge accounting  
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Pensions  

The liability for future pension payments depends on several complex judgements, relating to the discount rate used, the expected 
rate of price inflation, the rate at which salaries and pensions are expected to increase and mortality rates. Qualified actuaries are 
engaged to provide expert advice for the pension schemes for which Wandle is a member. More detail is available in note 30. 

 

Provisions 

Fire safety remediation provision 

The Regulatory reform fire safety order, 2005, creates an obligation on Registered Providers to carry out risk assessments: to 
identify, manage and reduce the risk of fire. The fire safety regime has been evolving since the Grenfell fire, resulting in the new Fire 
Safety Act. 

A provision for fire safety remediation works (cladding and balconies) of £1.3m (2021 £1.1m) is included in 2021 Operating Costs. 
The provision was made after using appropriate judgments to determine whether FRS102 requirements were met: 

• The total cost for fire remediation and fire safety works where an expectation had been established for residents that 
works would be undertaken. The cost estimates were based on an analysis by consultant surveyors and further 
assessment from the Association’s Asset Management Team. 

• As part of the FRS102 recognition process, alternatives to remediation were considered, but these were discounted as not 
being viable options; 

• Consideration if costs were revenue or capital in nature according to Wandle’s accounting policies;  
• Recovery of cost from leaseholders, following required consultation. 

 

Roof remediation provision 

A provision for defective roof remediation of £0.4m is included in 2022 Operating costs. The provision was made after using 
appropriate judgments to determine whether FRS102 requirements were met: 

• The total cost is based on expert quantity surveying performed by the Associations Asset Management Team; 
• As part of the FRS102 recognition process, alternatives to remediation were considered, but these were discounted as not 

being viable options; 
• Consideration if costs were revenue or capital in nature according to Wandle’s accounting policies; 
• Recovery of cost from leaseholders, following required consultation. 
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The Group holds floating rate loans which expose the Group to interest rate risk; to mitigate against this risk the Group uses interest rate 
swaps. These instruments are measured at fair value at each reporting date. They are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and 
as liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

The Group has designated each of the swaps against either existing drawn floating rate debt or against highly probable future floating rate 
debt. To the extent the hedge is effective, movements in fair value, other than adjustments for own or counterparty credit risk, are 
recognised in Other comprehensive income and presented in a separate cash flow hedge reserve. Any movements in fair value relating to 
ineffectiveness and adjustments for our own or counterparty credit risk are recognised as income and expenditure. 

 

2 Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty  

 

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of 
applying the Group’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and 
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  

 

a. Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies  
 

The following are the significant management judgements made in applying the accounting policies of the Group that have the most 
significant effect on the financial statements. 

• Determining categorisation of financial instruments. Distinguishing between basic and non-basic accounting treatment of financial 
instruments for the purposes of FRS102, chapters 11 & 12.  

• Impairment of properties. After capitalisation, management monitors the project and considers whether events indicate that an 
impairment review is required. Management also reassesses the carrying value at the reporting date of any previously impaired 
properties which may result in the release or adjustment of a previously held impairment. 

• Capitalisation of property development costs. Distinguishing the point at which a project is more likely than not to complete, 
allowing capitalisation of development costs requires judgement. 

• Determining whether the changes in terms of a debt instrument are sufficiently significant to be considered substantial, judgement is 
required to decide whether the changes in a debt instrument’s terms following the renegotiation of its terms are sufficiently 
significant to warrant the original loan to be derecognised and a new loan recognised. 

• The appropriate allocation of costs for mixed tenure developments. 
• The allocation of costs relating to shared ownership between current and fixed assets. Whether surplus/ (deficit) on disposal of 

housing properties represents an operating surplus. We consider the development and sale of shared ownership properties to be 
part of our trading activities, including subsequent tranche sales. We anticipate shared ownership properties to staircase over time 
as part of our business model and trading activity. 
 

b.     Key accounting estimates and assumptions  

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates by definition, will mean that 
estimates may not equal the related results.  

Tangible fixed assets (see notes 14 and 15)  

 

Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their useful lives considering residual values, where 
appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending on several factors. In 
reassessing asset lives, factors such as condition and remaining years of economic benefits are considered. Residual value 
assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values. For 
housing property assets, the assets are broken down into components based on management’s assessment of the properties. 
Individual useful economic lives are assigned to these components. 

 

Determining whether an impairment review is required  

Determining whether there are indicators of impairment of the Group’s tangible assets requires judgement. The following are 
considered to be indicators of impairment, but other events may also indicate that an impairment review is required: 

• A contamination or similar issue that was not identified as part of a development appraisal which results in a material 
increase in the cost of the development; 

• A change in government policy, regulation or legislation;  
• A reduction in demand for a property (either by type or location, possibly evidenced by increased voids); 
• A reduction in the market value of shared ownership properties;  
• Obsolescence of a property.  
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any impairment losses. Any losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in Other operating 
expenses. 

 

Recoverable amount of rental and other trade receivables  

The Group estimates the recoverable value of rental and other receivables and impairs the debtor based on these estimates. 

 

Concessionary loans 

Concessionary loans are those loans made or received by the Group that are made:   

• To further its public benefit objectives,  
• At a rate of interest which is below the prevailing market rate of interest  

 
These loans are measured at the amount advanced at the inception of the loan less amounts received and any provisions for impairment. 
Any associated grant is recognised as deferred income until the loan is redeemed.  

The Group has several arrangements that are considered to be concessionary loans: 

 

Homebuy  

Under the Homebuy scheme and the Key Worker Living Initiative, the Group receives Social Housing Grant representing a percentage of 
the open market purchase price of a property in order to advance interest-free loans to a homebuyer. 

 

Easybuy  

Easybuy loans are shared equity loans secured by way of a second charge on the property where the buyer could purchase the home at 
85% of its value, with Wandle retaining a 15% charge against the title. The loans can be repaid at any time within the loan agreement, the 
amount of which is dependent on the market value of the property at the date of repayment. The assets are recorded at fair value, being 
the estimated amount receivable by the group, discounted to present day values. Interest is payable after 5 years and the 15% charge 
becomes payable to Wandle when the homeowner chooses to sell their property. 

 

Rent and service charge agreements  

The Group sometimes plans with individuals and households for deferred payments of rent and service charge arrears. These 
arrangements are effectively loans granted at nil interest rate. 

 

Loans, Investments and short-term deposits  

All loans, investments and short-term deposits held by the Group are classified as basic financial instruments in accordance with FRS 102. 
These instruments are initially recorded at the transaction price less any transaction costs (historic cost). FRS 102 requires that basic 
financial instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment losses. 
Loans and investments that are payable or receivable within one year are not discounted. 

 

Financial liabilities and equity  

Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument's contractual obligations, rather than 
the financial instrument's legal form. 

 

Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet consists of cash at bank, in hand, deposits and short-term investments with an original 
maturity of three months or less. 

 

Derivative instruments and hedge accounting  
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The Group holds floating rate loans which expose the Group to interest rate risk; to mitigate against this risk the Group uses interest rate 
swaps. These instruments are measured at fair value at each reporting date. They are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and 
as liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

The Group has designated each of the swaps against either existing drawn floating rate debt or against highly probable future floating rate 
debt. To the extent the hedge is effective, movements in fair value, other than adjustments for own or counterparty credit risk, are 
recognised in Other comprehensive income and presented in a separate cash flow hedge reserve. Any movements in fair value relating to 
ineffectiveness and adjustments for our own or counterparty credit risk are recognised as income and expenditure. 

 

2 Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty  

 

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of 
applying the Group’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and 
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  

 

a. Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies  
 

The following are the significant management judgements made in applying the accounting policies of the Group that have the most 
significant effect on the financial statements. 

• Determining categorisation of financial instruments. Distinguishing between basic and non-basic accounting treatment of financial 
instruments for the purposes of FRS102, chapters 11 & 12.  

• Impairment of properties. After capitalisation, management monitors the project and considers whether events indicate that an 
impairment review is required. Management also reassesses the carrying value at the reporting date of any previously impaired 
properties which may result in the release or adjustment of a previously held impairment. 

• Capitalisation of property development costs. Distinguishing the point at which a project is more likely than not to complete, 
allowing capitalisation of development costs requires judgement. 

• Determining whether the changes in terms of a debt instrument are sufficiently significant to be considered substantial, judgement is 
required to decide whether the changes in a debt instrument’s terms following the renegotiation of its terms are sufficiently 
significant to warrant the original loan to be derecognised and a new loan recognised. 

• The appropriate allocation of costs for mixed tenure developments. 
• The allocation of costs relating to shared ownership between current and fixed assets. Whether surplus/ (deficit) on disposal of 

housing properties represents an operating surplus. We consider the development and sale of shared ownership properties to be 
part of our trading activities, including subsequent tranche sales. We anticipate shared ownership properties to staircase over time 
as part of our business model and trading activity. 
 

b.     Key accounting estimates and assumptions  

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates by definition, will mean that 
estimates may not equal the related results.  

Tangible fixed assets (see notes 14 and 15)  

 

Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their useful lives considering residual values, where 
appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending on several factors. In 
reassessing asset lives, factors such as condition and remaining years of economic benefits are considered. Residual value 
assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values. For 
housing property assets, the assets are broken down into components based on management’s assessment of the properties. 
Individual useful economic lives are assigned to these components. 

 

Determining whether an impairment review is required  

Determining whether there are indicators of impairment of the Group’s tangible assets requires judgement. The following are 
considered to be indicators of impairment, but other events may also indicate that an impairment review is required: 

• A contamination or similar issue that was not identified as part of a development appraisal which results in a material 
increase in the cost of the development; 

• A change in government policy, regulation or legislation;  
• A reduction in demand for a property (either by type or location, possibly evidenced by increased voids); 
• A reduction in the market value of shared ownership properties;  
• Obsolescence of a property.  
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The Group holds floating rate loans which expose the Group to interest rate risk; to mitigate against this risk the Group uses interest rate 
swaps. These instruments are measured at fair value at each reporting date. They are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and 
as liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

The Group has designated each of the swaps against either existing drawn floating rate debt or against highly probable future floating rate 
debt. To the extent the hedge is effective, movements in fair value, other than adjustments for own or counterparty credit risk, are 
recognised in Other comprehensive income and presented in a separate cash flow hedge reserve. Any movements in fair value relating to 
ineffectiveness and adjustments for our own or counterparty credit risk are recognised as income and expenditure. 

 

2 Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty  

 

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of 
applying the Group’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and 
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  

 

a. Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies  
 

The following are the significant management judgements made in applying the accounting policies of the Group that have the most 
significant effect on the financial statements. 

• Determining categorisation of financial instruments. Distinguishing between basic and non-basic accounting treatment of financial 
instruments for the purposes of FRS102, chapters 11 & 12.  

• Impairment of properties. After capitalisation, management monitors the project and considers whether events indicate that an 
impairment review is required. Management also reassesses the carrying value at the reporting date of any previously impaired 
properties which may result in the release or adjustment of a previously held impairment. 

• Capitalisation of property development costs. Distinguishing the point at which a project is more likely than not to complete, 
allowing capitalisation of development costs requires judgement. 

• Determining whether the changes in terms of a debt instrument are sufficiently significant to be considered substantial, judgement is 
required to decide whether the changes in a debt instrument’s terms following the renegotiation of its terms are sufficiently 
significant to warrant the original loan to be derecognised and a new loan recognised. 

• The appropriate allocation of costs for mixed tenure developments. 
• The allocation of costs relating to shared ownership between current and fixed assets. Whether surplus/ (deficit) on disposal of 

housing properties represents an operating surplus. We consider the development and sale of shared ownership properties to be 
part of our trading activities, including subsequent tranche sales. We anticipate shared ownership properties to staircase over time 
as part of our business model and trading activity. 
 

b.     Key accounting estimates and assumptions  

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates by definition, will mean that 
estimates may not equal the related results.  

Tangible fixed assets (see notes 14 and 15)  

 

Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their useful lives considering residual values, where 
appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending on several factors. In 
reassessing asset lives, factors such as condition and remaining years of economic benefits are considered. Residual value 
assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values. For 
housing property assets, the assets are broken down into components based on management’s assessment of the properties. 
Individual useful economic lives are assigned to these components. 

 

Determining whether an impairment review is required  

Determining whether there are indicators of impairment of the Group’s tangible assets requires judgement. The following are 
considered to be indicators of impairment, but other events may also indicate that an impairment review is required: 

• A contamination or similar issue that was not identified as part of a development appraisal which results in a material 
increase in the cost of the development; 

• A change in government policy, regulation or legislation;  
• A reduction in demand for a property (either by type or location, possibly evidenced by increased voids); 
• A reduction in the market value of shared ownership properties;  
• Obsolescence of a property.  
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The Group holds floating rate loans which expose the Group to interest rate risk; to mitigate against this risk the Group uses interest rate 
swaps. These instruments are measured at fair value at each reporting date. They are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and 
as liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

The Group has designated each of the swaps against either existing drawn floating rate debt or against highly probable future floating rate 
debt. To the extent the hedge is effective, movements in fair value, other than adjustments for own or counterparty credit risk, are 
recognised in Other comprehensive income and presented in a separate cash flow hedge reserve. Any movements in fair value relating to 
ineffectiveness and adjustments for our own or counterparty credit risk are recognised as income and expenditure. 

 

2 Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty  

 

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of 
applying the Group’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and 
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  

 

a. Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies  
 

The following are the significant management judgements made in applying the accounting policies of the Group that have the most 
significant effect on the financial statements. 

• Determining categorisation of financial instruments. Distinguishing between basic and non-basic accounting treatment of financial 
instruments for the purposes of FRS102, chapters 11 & 12.  

• Impairment of properties. After capitalisation, management monitors the project and considers whether events indicate that an 
impairment review is required. Management also reassesses the carrying value at the reporting date of any previously impaired 
properties which may result in the release or adjustment of a previously held impairment. 

• Capitalisation of property development costs. Distinguishing the point at which a project is more likely than not to complete, 
allowing capitalisation of development costs requires judgement. 

• Determining whether the changes in terms of a debt instrument are sufficiently significant to be considered substantial, judgement is 
required to decide whether the changes in a debt instrument’s terms following the renegotiation of its terms are sufficiently 
significant to warrant the original loan to be derecognised and a new loan recognised. 

• The appropriate allocation of costs for mixed tenure developments. 
• The allocation of costs relating to shared ownership between current and fixed assets. Whether surplus/ (deficit) on disposal of 

housing properties represents an operating surplus. We consider the development and sale of shared ownership properties to be 
part of our trading activities, including subsequent tranche sales. We anticipate shared ownership properties to staircase over time 
as part of our business model and trading activity. 
 

b.     Key accounting estimates and assumptions  

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates by definition, will mean that 
estimates may not equal the related results.  

Tangible fixed assets (see notes 14 and 15)  

 

Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their useful lives considering residual values, where 
appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending on several factors. In 
reassessing asset lives, factors such as condition and remaining years of economic benefits are considered. Residual value 
assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values. For 
housing property assets, the assets are broken down into components based on management’s assessment of the properties. 
Individual useful economic lives are assigned to these components. 

 

Determining whether an impairment review is required  

Determining whether there are indicators of impairment of the Group’s tangible assets requires judgement. The following are 
considered to be indicators of impairment, but other events may also indicate that an impairment review is required: 

• A contamination or similar issue that was not identified as part of a development appraisal which results in a material 
increase in the cost of the development; 

• A change in government policy, regulation or legislation;  
• A reduction in demand for a property (either by type or location, possibly evidenced by increased voids); 
• A reduction in the market value of shared ownership properties;  
• Obsolescence of a property.  
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The Group holds floating rate loans which expose the Group to interest rate risk; to mitigate against this risk the Group uses interest rate 
swaps. These instruments are measured at fair value at each reporting date. They are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and 
as liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

The Group has designated each of the swaps against either existing drawn floating rate debt or against highly probable future floating rate 
debt. To the extent the hedge is effective, movements in fair value, other than adjustments for own or counterparty credit risk, are 
recognised in Other comprehensive income and presented in a separate cash flow hedge reserve. Any movements in fair value relating to 
ineffectiveness and adjustments for our own or counterparty credit risk are recognised as income and expenditure. 

 

2 Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty  

 

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of 
applying the Group’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and 
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  

 

a. Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies  
 

The following are the significant management judgements made in applying the accounting policies of the Group that have the most 
significant effect on the financial statements. 

• Determining categorisation of financial instruments. Distinguishing between basic and non-basic accounting treatment of financial 
instruments for the purposes of FRS102, chapters 11 & 12.  

• Impairment of properties. After capitalisation, management monitors the project and considers whether events indicate that an 
impairment review is required. Management also reassesses the carrying value at the reporting date of any previously impaired 
properties which may result in the release or adjustment of a previously held impairment. 

• Capitalisation of property development costs. Distinguishing the point at which a project is more likely than not to complete, 
allowing capitalisation of development costs requires judgement. 

• Determining whether the changes in terms of a debt instrument are sufficiently significant to be considered substantial, judgement is 
required to decide whether the changes in a debt instrument’s terms following the renegotiation of its terms are sufficiently 
significant to warrant the original loan to be derecognised and a new loan recognised. 

• The appropriate allocation of costs for mixed tenure developments. 
• The allocation of costs relating to shared ownership between current and fixed assets. Whether surplus/ (deficit) on disposal of 

housing properties represents an operating surplus. We consider the development and sale of shared ownership properties to be 
part of our trading activities, including subsequent tranche sales. We anticipate shared ownership properties to staircase over time 
as part of our business model and trading activity. 
 

b.     Key accounting estimates and assumptions  

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates by definition, will mean that 
estimates may not equal the related results.  

Tangible fixed assets (see notes 14 and 15)  

 

Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their useful lives considering residual values, where 
appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending on several factors. In 
reassessing asset lives, factors such as condition and remaining years of economic benefits are considered. Residual value 
assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values. For 
housing property assets, the assets are broken down into components based on management’s assessment of the properties. 
Individual useful economic lives are assigned to these components. 

 

Determining whether an impairment review is required  

Determining whether there are indicators of impairment of the Group’s tangible assets requires judgement. The following are 
considered to be indicators of impairment, but other events may also indicate that an impairment review is required: 

• A contamination or similar issue that was not identified as part of a development appraisal which results in a material 
increase in the cost of the development; 

• A change in government policy, regulation or legislation;  
• A reduction in demand for a property (either by type or location, possibly evidenced by increased voids); 
• A reduction in the market value of shared ownership properties;  
• Obsolescence of a property.  
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3. Turnover, operating cost, operating surplus - Group 

 

 

     2022     2021 

 Turnover Cost of 
sales 

Operating 
costs 

Other 
operating 

items 

Operating 
surplus 

Turnover Cost of 
sales 

Operating 
costs 

Other 
operating 

items 

Operating 
surplus 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Social housing 
Lettings 

          

Housing 
accommodation 

43,884  - 37,171  - 6,713  38,665  - 30,775  - 7,890  

Shared ownership 5,346  - 2,613  - 2,733  5,240  - 2,364  - 2,876  

Supported housing 2,217  - 888  - 1,329  2,062  - 1,228  - 834  

Other affordable 615  - 166  - 449  5,540  - 2,345  - 3,195  

 52,062  - 40,838 - 11,224  51,507  - 36,712  - 14,795  

           

Other social housing 
Activities 

          

Development 
administration 

-  -  343  -  (343) 234  - - - 234  

First tranche shared 
ownership sales 

6,305  5,856  -  -  449  4,534  4,034 - - 500  

Home buy & easy buy 
loan redemptions 

-  -  -  -  -  238  - - - 238  

Other 
 

785  -  447  -  338  286  - 148 - 138  

Surplus on sale of 
fixed assets 

-  -  -  12,059 12,059  -  - - 12,898 12,898  

 7,090  5,856  790  12,059 12,503  5,292  4,034 148 12,898 14,008  

           

Non-social housing 
Activities 

          

Commercial rent & 
development fees 

250  35 - 215 31 - - - 31 

Market rent 15 - (1) - 16 465 - 75 - 390 

 265 - 34 - 231 496 - 75 - 421 

           

 59,417 5,856 41,662 12,059 23,958 57,295 4,034 36,935 12,898 29,224 
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3. Turnover, operating cost, operating surplus - Association 
     2022     2021 

 Turnover Cost of 
sales 

Operating 
costs 

Other 
operating 

items 

Operating 
surplus 

Turnover Cost of 
sales 

Operating 
costs 

Other 
operating 

items 

Operating 
surplus 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Social housing lettings           

Housing 
accommodation 

43,884   37,171   6,713  38,664  -  30,775  -  7,889  

Shared ownership 5,346   2,613   2,733  5,240  -  2,364  -  2,876  

Supported housing 2,217   888   1,329  2,062  -  1,228  -  834  

Other affordable 615   166   449  5,540  -  2,345  -  3,195  

 52,062   40,838   11,224 51,506  -  36,712  -  14,794  

           

Other social Housing 
Activities 

          

Development 
administration 

-  - 343 -  (343) 234  - -  -  234 

First tranche shared 
ownership sales 

6,305  5,856  -  -  449  4,625  4,034  -  -  591  

Home buy & easy buy 
loan redemptions 

-  -  -  -  -  238  -    -  238  

Other 
 

1,655  -  451  -  1,204 286  -  148  -  138 

Surplus on sale of 
fixed assets 

-  -  -  12,059 12,059  -  -  -  12,898  12,898  

 7,960  5,856  794  12,059 13,369  5,383  4,034  148  12,898 14,099  

           

Non-social housing 
activities 

          

Commercial rent & 
development fees 

250 
 

- 35 - 215 31  - -  -  31 

Market rent 
 

15 - (1) - 16 465  -  74  -  391  

 265 - 34 - 231 496  -  74  -  422  

           

 60,287 5,856 
 

41,666 12,059 
 

24,824 57,385 4,034 36,934 12,898 29,315 
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3. Turnover, operating cost, operating surplus - Association 
     2022     2021 

 Turnover Cost of 
sales 

Operating 
costs 

Other 
operating 

items 

Operating 
surplus 

Turnover Cost of 
sales 

Operating 
costs 

Other 
operating 

items 

Operating 
surplus 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Social housing lettings           

Housing 
accommodation 

43,884   37,171   6,713  38,664  -  30,775  -  7,889  

Shared ownership 5,346   2,613   2,733  5,240  -  2,364  -  2,876  

Supported housing 2,217   888   1,329  2,062  -  1,228  -  834  

Other affordable 615   166   449  5,540  -  2,345  -  3,195  

 52,062   40,838   11,224 51,506  -  36,712  -  14,794  

           

Other social Housing 
Activities 

          

Development 
administration 

-  - 343 -  (343) 234  - -  -  234 

First tranche shared 
ownership sales 

6,305  5,856  -  -  449  4,625  4,034  -  -  591  

Home buy & easy buy 
loan redemptions 

-  -  -  -  -  238  -    -  238  

Other 
 

1,655  -  451  -  1,204 286  -  148  -  138 

Surplus on sale of 
fixed assets 

-  -  -  12,059 12,059  -  -  -  12,898  12,898  

 7,960  5,856  794  12,059 13,369  5,383  4,034  148  12,898 14,099  

           

Non-social housing 
activities 

          

Commercial rent & 
development fees 

250 
 

- 35 - 215 31  - -  -  31 

Market rent 
 

15 - (1) - 16 465  -  74  -  391  

 265 - 34 - 231 496  -  74  -  422  

           

 60,287 5,856 
 

41,666 12,059 
 

24,824 57,385 4,034 36,934 12,898 29,315 
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4. Income & expenditure from social housing lettings 
 

 

     2022     2021 

 General 
needs 

Shared 
ownership 

Supported 
housing 

Other 
affordable 

Total General 
needs 

Shared 
ownership 

Supported 
housing 

Other 
affordable 

Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Turnover from Social 
Housing Lettings 

          

Rents receivable net 
of identifiable service 
charges 

37,823  3,684  1,822  598  43,927  32,920  3,751  1,735  5,162  43,568  

Service charges 
receivable 

2,791 1,459  388  17  4,655 2,466  1,279  320  378  4,443  

Amortisation of 
deferred grants 

3,270  203  7  -  3,480  3,278  210  7  -  3,495  

 43,884  5,346  2,217  615  52,062  38,664  5,240  2,062  5,540  51,506  

           

           

Expenditure Social 
Housing Lettings 

          

Management 12,498  1,298  641  144  14,581  8,318  857  526  1,447  11,148  

Service charge costs 3,894  1,373  263  27  5,557  2,353  1,220  133  282  3,988  

Responsive 
maintenance 

7,671  -  11  -  7,682  6,304  75  280  299  6,958  

Major repairs 
 

3,246  (75)  14  -  3,185  3,178  56  117  47  3,398  

Cyclical repairs 2,081  60  -  -  2,141  2,948  308  172  270  3,698  

Rent losses from bad 
debts 

(410) (43) (59) (5) (517) (219) (152) -  -  (371) 

Depreciation of 
housing properties 

7,793  -  18  -  7,811  7,893  -  -  -  7,893  

Accelerated 
depreciation of 
components 
replaced 

398 - - - 398 - - - - - 

 37,171  2,613  888  166  40,838  30,775  2,364  1,228  2,345  36,712  

           

Operating surplus on 
social housing letting 
activities 

6,713 2,733 1,329 449 11,224 7,889  2,876 834  3,195  14,794  

Void losses (included 
in the above) 

313 71 82 14 480 186  33  214  77  510  
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5. Surplus on sale of fixed assets  

 Group 

   2022 2021 
 Shared 

ownership 
Other disposals Total Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Proceeds of sale 7,775  9,915  17,690  20,954  
Cost of sales – fixed assets (4,065) (1,566) (5,631) (8,439) 
Lease extensions - - - 385 
Surplus for the year 3,710  8,349  12,059  12,900  

 

 Association 
   2022 2021 
 Shared ownership Other disposals Total Total 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Proceeds of sale 7,775  9,915  17,690  20,954  
Cost of sales – fixed Assets (4,065) (1,566) (5,631) (8,439) 
Lease extensions - - - 385 
Surplus for the year 3,710  8,349  12,059  12,900  

 

 

6 Investment income 

 Group Association 
 2022 2021 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Movement in fair value of investment property 215 155 215  155 
Movement in value of easy buy finance loans 46  2 46  2 
 261  157  261  157  

 

7 Interest receivable & Other Income 

 Group Association 
 2022 2021 2022 2021 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Bank interest receivable 68 301  68  312  
Movement in value ineffective interest rate swaps 1,225 3,186  1,225 3,186  
 1,293 3,487  1,293 3,498  
     

 

8 Interest payable 

 Group Association 
 2022 2021 2022 2021 
Bank loans and other loans repayable: £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Wholly or partly repayable in less than 5 years 2,173  3,516  2,173 3,516  
Wholly or partly repayable in more than 5 years 8,266  7,373  8,266  7,373  
 10,439  10,889  10,439  10,889  
Net interest payable on interest rate swaps 3,843  3,841  3,843  3,841  
Movement in value of ineffective interest rate swaps - -  - -  
Less: Interest capitalised (699) (1,176) (699) (1,176) 
 13,583  13,554  13,583 13,554  
Interest payable to subsidiary undertakings 
 

-  -  18  11  

Recycled capital grant Fund 14  9  14  9  
Pension interest 110 62  110 62  
 13,707 13,625  13,725  13,636 

     
Other financing costs through other comprehensive income     
Movement in fair value of effective interest rate swaps  9,386 5,008 9,386 5,008 
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9 Directors emoluments 

The remuneration paid to the Board of Management, the Chief executive and any officer who is a member of the executive management team is as follows:
    

 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 
Total emoluments paid to the Board of Management 73 73 
Total emoluments paid to the Directors, including interim directors (including pension contribution) 704 621 
Emoluments of the Chief Executive (excluding pension contribution) 163 161 
   

 

As a member of the Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS), the pension entitlement of the Chief Executive is identical to those of other members. 

The total payments & accruals made to Campbell Tickell for the services of Interim Director of Maintenance Matthew Spittals from 10 December 2021 to 31 
March 2022 were £106k. 

Non-Executive Board members were paid as follows: 

 2022 2021 
 £ £ 
Thomas Bremner  -    9,355 
Ian Green  6,696  9,982 
Ashley Horsey  8,066  8,060 
Alfons Dankis  4,033  8,060 
Teresa Ocansey  5,720  5,720 
Asif Ghafoor  2,860  5,720 
Karen Toh  -    5,720 
Andrew McWilliams  5,720  5,720 
Geraldine Scott  -    286 
Joanna Hills  5,720  5,720 
James Pennington  5,720  6,483 
Valerie Vaughan-Dick  13,104 2,335 
Stephen Dickinson  3,019  - 
Paul Phillips  4,260  - 
Moorad Choudhry  2,882  - 
Zoe Shaw  2,882  - 
Denise Fowler  2,124  - 
 72,806 73,161 

Expenses paid to the Board of Management for reimbursement of travel £1,129 (2021: £nil).     

10 Employees’ information 

 2022 2021 
 Number Number 
The average number of employees expressed in full time equivalents during the year was  173 174 
   
 £’000 £’000 
Staff Costs (for the above persons)   
Wages and salaries 7,572 7,361 
Social security costs 736 740 
SHPs pension costs 250 271 
 8,558 8,372 

 
Salary banding for all management and other employees earning over £60,000 (including salaries, 
performance related pay and benefits in kind, but excluding pension contributions paid by the employer and 
any termination payments), including those who form the Executive Management and Senior Management 
Teams are as follows; 

  

 2022 2021 
 Number Number 
Salary Bands   
£60,000 to £65,000 6 5 
£65,001 to £70,000 - - 
£70,001 to £75,000 - 1 
£75,001 to £80,000 4 4 
£80,001 to £85,000 - 1 
£85,001 to £90,000 2 2 
£90,001 to £95,000 2 - 
£95,001 to £100,000 1 1 
£130,001 to £135,000 - 2 
£135,001 to £140,000 3 - 
£140,001 to £145,000 - 2 
£145,001 to £150,000  - - 
£155,001 to £160,000 - 1 
£160,00 to £165,000 1 - 

  

Wandle Housing Association Limited 

53 

 

 

 

11 Surplus on ordinary activities before tax 

                 Group              Association 
 2022 

£’000 
2021 

£’000 
2022 

£’000 
2021 

£’000      
The surplus is stated after charging/(crediting) the following:     
Depreciation of housing properties 7,811 7,715  7,811  7,715  
Depreciation of other tangible fixed assets 178  153  178  153 
Accelerated depreciation on components 398  181  398  181  
Amortisation of software 615 64 615 64 
Write down of properties developed for sale 216  -  216  -  
Office lease charges 633  644  633  644  
Amortisation of deferred capital grants (3,480) (3,509) (3,480) (3,509) 
     
     
Auditors’ remuneration (excluding VAT & expenses)     
In their capacity as auditors 81 76 81 76 
In respect of other services 26 29 26 29 

 

The 2022 write down charge of £216,000 relates to housing stock to be sold as First tranche sales. 

 

12 Tax on surplus on ordinary activities 

The parent association is an exempt charitable registered provider of social housing and no charge to corporation tax arises on its results for the year.  No 
charge to taxation arises on the results of the subsidiary undertakings, Delta Homes Limited and Ravensbourne Development Limited as all profits are paid 
across to the parent via gift aid.        

 

 

13 Intangible assets 

Group and Association  
  
 Housing Business 

Systems 
Cost £’000 
At 1 April 2021 2,953 
Additions 536 
At 31 March 2022 3,489 
  
Amortisation  
At 1 April 2021 64 
Charge for the year 615 
At 31 March 2022 679 
  
Net Book Value  
At 31 March 2022 2,810 
  
At 31 March 2021 2,889 

 

Intangible assets include the building and implementation costs of the Stream project. Wandle is building a new housing data base and CRM system using a 
Dynamics platform as well as the implementation of a replacement rent system and updated accounting system. 

The full building and implementation costs of the programme will be capitalised up until the system is fully completed. Costs will then be depreciated over a 5-
year period, in line with the initial planned useful life of the project.   
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9 Directors emoluments 

The remuneration paid to the Board of Management, the Chief executive and any officer who is a member of the executive management team is as follows:
    

 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 
Total emoluments paid to the Board of Management 73 73 
Total emoluments paid to the Directors, including interim directors (including pension contribution) 704 621 
Emoluments of the Chief Executive (excluding pension contribution) 163 161 
   

 

As a member of the Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS), the pension entitlement of the Chief Executive is identical to those of other members. 

The total payments & accruals made to Campbell Tickell for the services of Interim Director of Maintenance Matthew Spittals from 10 December 2021 to 31 
March 2022 were £106k. 

Non-Executive Board members were paid as follows: 

 2022 2021 
 £ £ 
Thomas Bremner  -    9,355 
Ian Green  6,696  9,982 
Ashley Horsey  8,066  8,060 
Alfons Dankis  4,033  8,060 
Teresa Ocansey  5,720  5,720 
Asif Ghafoor  2,860  5,720 
Karen Toh  -    5,720 
Andrew McWilliams  5,720  5,720 
Geraldine Scott  -    286 
Joanna Hills  5,720  5,720 
James Pennington  5,720  6,483 
Valerie Vaughan-Dick  13,104 2,335 
Stephen Dickinson  3,019  - 
Paul Phillips  4,260  - 
Moorad Choudhry  2,882  - 
Zoe Shaw  2,882  - 
Denise Fowler  2,124  - 
 72,806 73,161 

Expenses paid to the Board of Management for reimbursement of travel £1,129 (2021: £nil).     

10 Employees’ information 

 2022 2021 
 Number Number 
The average number of employees expressed in full time equivalents during the year was  173 174 
   
 £’000 £’000 
Staff Costs (for the above persons)   
Wages and salaries 7,572 7,361 
Social security costs 736 740 
SHPs pension costs 250 271 
 8,558 8,372 

 
Salary banding for all management and other employees earning over £60,000 (including salaries, 
performance related pay and benefits in kind, but excluding pension contributions paid by the employer and 
any termination payments), including those who form the Executive Management and Senior Management 
Teams are as follows; 

  

 2022 2021 
 Number Number 
Salary Bands   
£60,000 to £65,000 6 5 
£65,001 to £70,000 - - 
£70,001 to £75,000 - 1 
£75,001 to £80,000 4 4 
£80,001 to £85,000 - 1 
£85,001 to £90,000 2 2 
£90,001 to £95,000 2 - 
£95,001 to £100,000 1 1 
£130,001 to £135,000 - 2 
£135,001 to £140,000 3 - 
£140,001 to £145,000 - 2 
£145,001 to £150,000  - - 
£155,001 to £160,000 - 1 
£160,00 to £165,000 1 - 
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14 Tangible fixed assets - Housing properties – Group 

 Completed Under Construction  

 Housing properties 
for letting 

 

Supported housing 
properties for 

letting 
 

Shared ownership 
housing properties 

 

Key worker and 
intermediate rent 

properties  

Subtotal completed 
housing properties 

 

Shared ownership 
housing properties 

 

Key worker and 
intermediate rent 

properties  

Subtotal housing 
properties under 

construction  
 

Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Cost:          

At 1 April 2021 796,982  1,230 127,893  - 
 

926,105 17,237  - 17,237  943,342  

Transfer from/to current assets -  - (3,754) - (3,754) 3,649  - 3,649  (105) 

Schemes completed in the year 160  - 9,106  - 9,266  (9,266) - (9,266) -  

Tenure Transfers (8,567) - (1,526) 10,093 -  (6,127) 6,127 -  -  

Additions – properties constructed -  - -  - -  2,825  183 3,008  3,008  

Additions – works to existing properties 6,002  - -  - 6,002  - - -  6,002  

Additions - DIYSO's / Other 219  - -  - 219  - - - 219  

Disposals:          

- Shared ownership subsequent tranches -  - (3,898)  - (3,898) - - -  (3,898) 

- Properties for lettings (1,541)  - - - (1,541) - - -  (1,541) 

- Components (1,155) - (27)  - (1,182) - - -  (1,182) 

At 31 March 2022 792,100 1,230 127,794  10,093 931,217  8,318  6,310 14,628  945,845 

          

Depreciation:          

At 1 April 2021 89,685  158 - - 89,843  - - - 89,843  

Reclassification -  - - - -  - - - -  

Charge for the year 7,793  18  - - 7,811  - - - 7,811  

Transfers (727) - - 727 -  - - - -  

Disposals - components (784) - - - (784) - - - (784) 

Disposals - voids (210) - - - (210) - - - (210) 

At 31 March 2022 95,757  176 - 727 96,660  - - - 96,660  

          

          

Net book value:          

At 31 March 2022 696,343  1,054 127,794  9,366 834,557  8,318  6,310 14,628  849,185  

At 31 March 2022 707,297 1,072  127,893  - 836,262  17,237  -  17,237  853,499  
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14 Tangible fixed assets - Housing properties – Association 

 Completed Under Construction  

 Housing properties 
for letting 

 

Supported housing 
properties for 

letting 
 

Shared ownership 
housing properties 

 

Key worker and 
intermediate rent 

properties 

Subtotal completed 
housing properties 

 

Shared ownership 
housing properties 

 

Key worker and 
intermediate rent 

properties 

Subtotal housing 
properties under 

construction  
 

Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Cost:          

At 1 April 2021 801,370  1,230 126,106  - 928,706  22,865 - 22,865 951,571  

Transfer from/to current assets - - (3,754) - (3,754) 3,649 - 3,649  (105) 

Schemes completed in the year 160  - 9,106 - 9,266  (9,266) - (9,266) -  

Tenure Transfers (8,567)  - (1,526) 10,093 -  (6,127) 6,127 -  -  

Additions – properties constructed - - - - -  2,866 183 3,049 3,049  

Additions – works to existing properties 6,002  - - - 6,002  - - -  6,002  

Additions - DIYSO's / Other 219 - -  - 219  - - - 219  

Disposals:          

- Shared ownership subsequent tranches - - (3,898) - (3,898) - - -  (3,898) 

- Properties for lettings (1,541) - - - (1,541) - - -  (1.541) 

- Components (1,155) - (27) - (1,182) - - -  (1,182) 

- Other - - - - - - - -  - 

At 31 March 2022 796,488  1,230 126,007  10,093 933,818 13,987 6,310 20,297  954,115  

          

Depreciation:          

At 1 April 2021 89,684 159  - - 89,843  - - - 89,843  

Charge for the year 7,793  18  - - 7,811  - - - 7,811  

Transfers (727) - - 727 -  - - - -  

Disposals - components (784) - - - (784) - - - (784) 

Disposals - voids (210) - - - (210) - - - (210) 

At 31 March 2022 95,756 177  - 727 96,660  - - - 96,660  

          

          

Net book value:          

At 31 March 2022 700,732 1,053  126,007  9,366 837,158  13,987 6,310 20,297  857,455  

At 31 March 2021 711,686 1,071  126,106  - 838,863  22,865  -  22,865  861,728  
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14 Tangible fixed assets (continued) 

 Group Association 
 2022 2021 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
The net book value of completed housing properties     
which excludes work in progress and land purchased for future 
development 

    

Comprises:     
Freeholds 715,613 717,318 718,214 719,921 
Long leaseholds 118,944 118,944 118,944 118,944 
 834,557 836,262 837,158 838,865 

 

£x.xm is pledged as security from Tangible fixed assets. (data due 28/6/22) 

 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 
Major repairs capitalised/expensed:   
Group and Association   
   
Major repairs capitalised - doors, external envelope works, rewiring 2,256 2,249 
Major repairs capitalised - all other categories 3,746 1,540 
 6,002 3,789 
Major repairs expensed (including cyclical repairs) 5,326 7,097 
 11,328 10,886 

 

 

Capitalised interest: Group Association 
Group and Association 2022 2021 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
     
Capitalised interest 17,859 17,160 17,859 17,160 

 

Capitalised interest - Additions to housing properties during the year included capitalised interest of £0.699m (2021: £1.716m). The capitalisation rate used 
was 4.3% (2021: 4.3%). 

 

 

 

15 Tangible fixed assets 

 Office Equipment Computer Equipment Total 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Cost    
At 1 April 2021 765  2,003  2,768  
Additions 17 26 43 
Disposals (742) (1,566) (2,308) 
At 31 March 2022 40  463  503 
    
Depreciation    
At 1 April 2021 754  1,736  2,490  
Charge for the year 9 169 178 
Disposals (742)  (1,566)  (2,308)  
At 31 March 2022 21  339  360  
    
Net book value    
At 31 March 2022 19 124 143 
    
At 31 March 2021 11 267 278 
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16 Investment properties 

 Group and Association 
 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 
Commercial and market rent properties at fair value   
At 1 April  7,360 6,875 
Increase  in fair value 210 485 
At 31 March  7,570 7,360 

 

The investment properties are the commercial element of the office building, a small portfolio of shops and a care home. These were valued at 31 March 2022 
Paul Tarrant MRICS, Director and RICS Registered Valuer and David Nesbit MRICS, professional external valuers. The full valuation of properties was 
undertaken in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors. 

In terms of the commercial assets, the valuation adopted a rent capitalisation methodology (i.e., rent and yield approach) coupled with an assessment of what 
an owner-occupier might pay on a £ per sq ft basis, to arrive at an opinion of values. This is in reference to respective rental and capital market value data / 
sentiment. The valuers have obtained yield, capital value and rental data from commercial agents, auction sale data and commercial property data bases. 

In respect of rental values, the valuation used the floor areas provided to ascertain whether the passing rent is rack rented, overrented or reversionary. JLL 
have applied our research on rental values to the subject properties. The yields we have adopted are bespoke of each individual commercial property. 

 

 

17 Investment in subsidiary undertakings 

The Association has interest in the following group entities: 
      

   

 Incorporation 
Country 

Nature of business Interest 

Name    
Ravensbourne Developments Limited United Kingdom Property Sales 100% ordinary shares 
Delta Homes Limited United Kingdom Property Development 100% ordinary shares 
Unitworthy Property Management Limited United Kingdom Service Charge Management 87% ordinary shares 
    
The results of Unitworthy Property Management Limited are not included in the consolidated results as they are considered to be 
immaterial.       

 

18 Investments & MOR homes finance loans 

 Group and Association 
 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 
   
Finance Investment Loans   
   
At 1 April 2021 404 401 

 
   
Movement in fair value 17 

 
3 

 
At 31 March 2022 421 404 
   
Of which non-current assets:   
Easybuy finance loans 201 184 
MORHomes Equity Investment 220 220 
 421 404 
   
Assumptions   
 2022 2021 
Discount rate, incorporating the default rate 10.5% 10.5% 
Housing Price Inflation, for the next three years 3.0% 3.0% 
Timing of receipt 8 to 15 years 8 to 15 years 
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19 Investments – Home buy loans      

 Group and Association 
 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 
Homebuy Loans   
At 1 April 2021 1,782  1,920  
Loans redeemed - (138) 
At 31 March 2022 1,782  1,782  

 

20 Properties for sale 

First tranche shared ownership Group Association 
 2022 2021 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
     
Completed 439  2,896 439  2,896  
In progress 4,885  8,213  4,885  8,213  
At 31 March 2022 5,324  11,109  5,324  11,109  

 

The amount of capitalised interest included in the stock values for the Group and Association at 31 March 2022 is £0.121m (2021: £0.334m). 

 

21 Debtors 

 Group Association 
 2022 2021 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Arrears of rent and service charges 4,014  4,520  4,014  4,520  
Less: provision for bad debts (2,678) (2,781) (2,678) (2,781) 
Net rents and service charges 1,336 1,739  1,336  1,739  
     
Other debtors 2,996  2,100  2,996  2,080  
Prepayments and accrued income 1,573  1,457 1,573  1,457 
 5,905  5,296 5,905  5,276  

 

Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings are on normal commercial terms with interest receivable shown in Note 7 to the financial statements.  

 

 

22 Cash at bank and equivalents 

 Group Association 
 2022 2021 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
     
Cash and equivalents 54,421 49,745 54,414 49,745 

 

Wandle has pledged financial assets as collateral for loans, in the form of funds held on deposit with lenders. The carrying amount of the assets pledged is 
£1,916,551 (2021: £1,916,551) and has been reported within total cash and cash equivalents for Wandle, as per note 22 above. The terms and conditions of 
the collateral or funds pledged are in line with the terms of the loan agreement with Affordable Homes Finance PLC (AHF) and are held in an interest-bearing 
deposit account as a guarantee for the loan. These funds are held under a trust arrangement and will remain pledged to AHF until the loan matures in 2043.  
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23 Creditors and amounts falling due within one year 

 Group Association 
 2022 2021 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Bank overdraft 13 - - - 
Housing and bank loans (note 28) 5,756  6,015  5,756  6,015  
Trade creditors 785  -  785  -  
Recycled capital grant fund (note 25) 1,880  2,711  1,880  2,711  
Deferred capital grants (note 26) 3,480  3,509  3,480  3,509  
Rents received in advance 2,705  3,226  2,705  3,226  
Other taxes and social security costs 327  393  327  393  
Other creditors 731  1,607 731 1,607  
SHPS liability (note 30) 846  784  846  784  
Accruals and deferred income  8,480  7,562  7,971  7,258  
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - -  694  1,270  
Residents sinking fund 4,038  3,732  4,038  3,732  
 29,041  29,539 29,213  30,505  

 

Accruals and deferred income include a provision of £1.289m (2021: £1.059m) for Fire remediation work and £0.403m (2021: £nil) for defective roof 
remediation.  

 

24 Creditors and amounts falling due after one year 

 Group and Association 
 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 
Housing and bank loans (note 28) 311,253  320,521  
Capitalised loan fees (1,458) (1,308) 
Cash flow hedges (note 29) 30,200 40,810  
Grant in respect of Homebuy loans 1,782  1,782  
SHPS liability (note 30)  3,051  4,690  
Recycled capital grant fund (note 25) 5,547  5,112  
Deferred capital grant (note 26) 366,840  372,005  
 717,215  743,612  

 

 

25 Recycled capital grant fund (RCGF) 

 Group and Association  
 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 
   
Opening balance at 1 April 2021 7,823  10,092  
Balance from Disposal proceeds fund 286 - 
SHG on staircasing sales (DCG) 2,392  1,232  
Utilisation of grant (376) - 
Repayment of SHG to GLA (2,712) (3,510) 
Interest 14  9 
Closing balance at 31 March 2022 7,427  7,823  
   
   
Amount repayable within one year 1,880  2,711  
Amount repayable after one year 5,547  5,112  
 7,427  7,823  
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26 Deferred capital grant (DCG) 

 Group and Association 
 Completed Under Construction Total 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 
    
    
At 1 April 2021 434,100  3,410  437,510  
Additions - 376  376  
Schemes completed during the year 992  (992) -  
    
Disposals (2,392) - (2,392) 
At 31 March 2022 432,700  2,794  435,494  
    
Amortisation    
At 1 April 2021 (61,996) -  (61,996) 
Amortised during the year (3,480) -  (3,480) 
Disposals 302  -  302  
At 31 March 2021 (65,174) -  (65,174) 
    
Book value    
At 31 March 2022 367,526 2,794 370,320 
    
At 1 April 2021 372,104 3,410 375,514 
    
  2022 2021 
Grant  £’000 £’000 
Amount to be amortised within one year  3,480 3,509  
Amount to be amortised after one year  366,840  372,005  
  370,320  375,514  
    
Total social housing grant receivable to date  435,494  437,510  
Social housing grant and other capital grants    
Cumulative amount credited to Income and Expenditure Account in prior years 
relating to major repairs revenue grants 

 7,396  7,396  

  442,890  444,906  
    

 

27 Financial instruments 

Financial risk management objectives and policies 

The Group's activities expose it to several financial risks including credit risk, cash flow risk and liquidity risk. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the 
Group’s policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written principles on the use of financial derivatives to manage these risks. The Group 
does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. 

Cash flow risk 

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates. The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge these 
exposures. 

Interest bearing assets and liabilities are held at fixed rate to ensure certainty of cash flows. 

Credit risk 

The Group’s principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables, and investments.    
   

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful 
receivables. An allowance for impairment is made where there is an identified loss event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a reduction in 
the recoverability of the cash flows. 

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by 
international credit-rating agencies.  

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and customers.  

Liquidity risk 

In order to maintain liquidity to ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing operations and future developments, the company uses a mixture of 
long-term and short-term debt finance. 

Further details regarding liquidity risk can be found in the Statement of accounting policies (note 1). 

 

The carrying values of the Group and Company’s financial assets and liabilities are summarised by category below:  
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Group’s policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written principles on the use of financial derivatives to manage these risks. The Group 
does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. 

Cash flow risk 

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates. The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge these 
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Interest bearing assets and liabilities are held at fixed rate to ensure certainty of cash flows. 

Credit risk 

The Group’s principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables, and investments.    
   

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful 
receivables. An allowance for impairment is made where there is an identified loss event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a reduction in 
the recoverability of the cash flows. 

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by 
international credit-rating agencies.  

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and customers.  

Liquidity risk 

In order to maintain liquidity to ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing operations and future developments, the company uses a mixture of 
long-term and short-term debt finance. 

Further details regarding liquidity risk can be found in the Statement of accounting policies (note 1). 
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the recoverability of the cash flows. 

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by 
international credit-rating agencies.  

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and customers.  

Liquidity risk 

In order to maintain liquidity to ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing operations and future developments, the company uses a mixture of 
long-term and short-term debt finance. 

Further details regarding liquidity risk can be found in the Statement of accounting policies (note 1). 

 

The carrying values of the Group and Company’s financial assets and liabilities are summarised by category below:  
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26 Deferred capital grant (DCG) 

 Group and Association 
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At 1 April 2021 372,104 3,410 375,514 
    
  2022 2021 
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  370,320  375,514  
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Cumulative amount credited to Income and Expenditure Account in prior years 
relating to major repairs revenue grants 

 7,396  7,396  

  442,890  444,906  
    

 

27 Financial instruments 
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 Group Association 
 2022 2021 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Financial assets     
Measured at fair value (present values of future expected cash redemptions)     
- Total value of loans (note 18) 421 404 421 404 
Measured at undiscounted amount receivable     
- Total rent & other debtors (note 21) 5,905 5,296 5,905 5,276 
 6,326 5,700 6,326 5,680 
     
Financial liabilities     
Measured at fair value and designated in an effective hedging relationship      
- Derivative financial liabilities (note 29) 16,119 25,223 16,119 25,223 
Measured at fair value and designated in an ineffective non-hedging relationship
  

    

- Derivative financial liabilities  14,081 15,587 14,081 15,587 
Measured at amortised cost     
- Loans payable (notes 23, 24) 315,551 325,228 315,551 325,228 
Measured at undisclosed amount payable     
- Trade and other creditors (note 23) 17,549 11,294 17,549 11,294 
 363,300 377,332 363,300 377,332 

             

The Group's income, expense, gains and losses in respect of financial instruments are summarised below: 

 Group  Association 
  2022 2021 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Interest income and expense     
Total net interest expense for financial liabilities at amortised cost 13,515 13,253 13,515 13,242 
     
Fair value gains and (losses)     
On derivative financial liabilities designated in an effective hedging relationship 9,384 5,008 9,384 5,008 
On derivative financial liabilities designated in an ineffective non-hedging 
relationship 

1,226 3,831 1,226 3,831 

 10,610 8,839 10,610 8,839 
     

      

28 Housing and bank loans 

Repayment profile of financial liabilities    
    
2022 Group and Association 
 Payable by 

instalment 
Payable on 

maturity 
2022 Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Less than one year 5,756  -  5,756  
Between two and five years 23,609  15,000  38,609  
More than five years 112,747  155,470 268,217  
Total 142,112  170,470  312,582  
    
2021 Group and Association 
 Payable by 

instalment 
Payable on 

maturity 
2021 Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Less than one year 6,015  -  6,015  
Between two and five years 23,429  15,000  38,429  
More than five years 122,361  155,260  277,621  
Total 151,805  170,260  322,065  

 

 

 

29 Cash flow hedges 

To hedge the potential volatility in future interest cash flows arising from movements in LIBOR, the Group has entered floating to fixed interest rate swaps. 
These interest rate swaps have similar terms (nominal value, repricing dates and repayment dates) to the variable loans that they are an economic hedge 
against. 

The change in fair value has been wholly recognised, with fully effective instruments reflected under hedge accounting in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 
to the Hedge Reserve and the other ineffective instruments reported through the Income and Expenditure account and General Reserve.  
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Group and Association 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 
Nominal Values   
Interest rate swap paying fixed 4.23% maturing in November 2031 5,000  5,000  
Interest rate swap paying fixed 4.23% maturing in November 2031 10,000  10,000  
Interest rate swap paying fixed 4.74% maturing in May 2035 11,000  11,000  
Interest rate swap paying fixed 4.09% maturing in November 2036 20,000  20,000  
Interest rate swap paying fixed 4.84% maturing in May 2037 10,000  10,000  
Interest rate swap paying fixed 4.99% maturing in August 2037 10,000  10,000  
Interest rate swap paying fixed 4.86% maturing in September 2037 20,000  20,000  
 86,000  86,000  

   

Group and Association 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 
Cash Flow Hedges at Fair Value     
Value of interest rate swap contracts, with effective hedging    16,119  25,223  
Value of interest rate swap contracts, with ineffective hedging    14,081 15,587  
 30,200  40,810  
   

 

Repayment profile of cash flow hedges 2022 2021 
Average contract fixed interest rate   £’000 £’000 
   
Less than one year - - 
Between two and five years -  -  
More than five years 4.64% 4.64% 
Total 4.64% 4.64% 

 

Repayment profile of cash flow hedges (Continued) 

 Notional principal value Fair value 
 2022 2021 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
     
Less than one year -  -  -  - 
Between two and five years -  -  -  -  
More than five years 86,000  86,000  30,200  39,109  
Total 86,000  86,000  30,200  39,109  

 

30 Pension scheme 

The Association participates in the Scheme, a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to some 500 non-associated employers. The Scheme is a 
defined benefit scheme in the UK. 

The Scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into force on 30 December 2005. This, together with the 
documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council, set out the framework for funding 
defined benefit occupational pension schemes in the UK. 

The last triennial valuation of the scheme for funding purposes was carried out at 30 September 2020. This valuation revealed a deficit of 1,560m. A recovery 
plan has been put in place with the aim of removing this deficit by 30 September 2026. 

The Scheme is classified as a “last man standing arrangement”. Therefore, the Association is potentially liable for other participating employers’ obligations if 
those employers are unable to meet their share of the Scheme deficit following withdrawal from the Scheme. Participating employers are legally required to 
meet their share of the Scheme deficit on an annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the Scheme. 

 

 

 

 

 2022 
 £’000 
Reconciliation of present value of plan liabilities      
At the beginning of the year 30,365  
Expenses 16  
Interest expense 651 
Actuarial losses (gains) due to scheme experience     1,801 
Actuarial losses (gains) due to changes in demographic assumptions     (461)  
Actuarial losses (gains) due to changes in financial assumptions     (2,088)  
Benefits paid (718) 
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At the end of the year 29,566  
  
Composition of plan liabilities  
Schemes wholly or partly funded 29,566 
  
  
Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets  
At the beginning of the year 24,888  
Interest income on plan assets 541  
Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in interest income) - gain     159  
Contributions by employer 799  
Benefits paid and expenses (718) 
At the end of the year 25,669  

 

The actual return on the plan assets (including any changes in share of assets) over the period ended 31 March 2022 was £700,000 (2021: £1,537,000). 

Group and Association 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 
Composition of plan assets   
Global Equity 4,926  3,967  
Absolute Return 1,030  1,374  
Distressed Opportunities 919  719  
Credit Relative Value 853  783  
Alternative Risk Premia 847  937  
Fund of Hedge Funds -  3  
Emerging Markets Debt 747  1,005  
Risk Sharing 845  906  
Insurance-Linked Securities 598  598  
Property 693  517  
Infrastructure 1,829  1,659  
Private Debt 658  594  
Opportunistic Illiquid Credit 862  633  
High Yield 221  745  
Opportunistic Credit 91  682  
Cash 87  -  
Corporate Bond Fund 1,712  1,470  
Liquid Credit -  297  
Long Lease Property 661  488  
Secured Income 956  1,035  
Liability Driven Investment 7,163  6,325  
Currency Hedging (100) - 
Net Current Assets 71  151  
Total plan Assets 25,669 24,888 
Actual return on plan assets 2.81% 8.40% 

 

None of the fair values of the assets shown above include any direct investments in the employer's own financial instruments or any property occupied by, or 
other assets used by, the employer. 

 

 2022 2021 
 % % 
Principal actuarial assumptions used at the balance sheet date   
Discount Rate 2.79 2.17 
Inflation (RPI) 3.59 3.28 
Inflation (CPI) 3.20 2.86 
Salary Growth 4.20 3.86 
Allowance for commutation of pension for cash at retirement     75% 75% 

 

        

  

       

 Life expectancy at 
age 65 (Years) 

The mortality assumptions adopted at 31 March 2022 imply the following life expectancies:     
Male retiring in 2022 21.1 
Female retiring in 2022 23.7 
Male retiring in 2042 22.4 
Female retiring in 2042 25.2 
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 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 
Fair value of plan assets 25,769 24,888 
Present value of plan liabilities (29,566) (30,365) 
Net pension scheme liability (3,897) (5,477) 

 

 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 
Net interest cost and expenses (126) (78) 
   
Analysis of actuarial loss recognised in Other Comprehensive Income      
Actual return less interest income included in net interest income   
Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest cost) - gain 159 2,057 
Experience gains and losses arising on the plan liabilities – (loss) / gain  (1,801) 206 
Effects of changes in the demographic assumptions underlying the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation –  gain / (loss)    
    

461 (109) 

Effects of changes in the financial assumptions underlying the present value of the defined benefit obligation – 
gain / (loss)  

2,088 (5,327) 

Opening balance adjustment (4) - 
Total actuarial gains and losses (before restriction due to some of the surplus not being recognisable) 
gain/(loss)    
    

903 
 

(3,173) 
 

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income – gain/(loss)    903 (3,173) 
        

 

31 Provisions for liabilities and charges 

 Group and Association  
 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 
   
Provisions 1,692 1,082 
At 31 March 2022 1,692 1,082 

 

See note 23 accruals and deferred income. 

       

32 Non-equity share capital 

Each member of the Board of Management holds one share of £1 in the Association. 
 

 2022 2021 
 £ £ 
Allotted, issued and fully paid:   
At start of year 11 11 
Issued during the year 5 2 
Written off in the year (6) (2) 
At the end of the year 10 11 

 

The shares have limited rights. They carry no entitlement to dividend. They are not repayable and do not participate in winding up. 
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33 Notes to cashflow statement 

 Group 
 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 
Surplus for Year 11,805 19,243 
Interest payable and similar charges 13,707 13,636  
Interest receivable (1,293) (3,498) 
Investment income (261) (157) 
Operating Surplus 23,958 29,224  
   
Cost of properties disposed 6,621 9,625  
Depreciation (housing & other fixed assets) 8,387 8,048  
Impairment release on disposal - 736  
Write down on properties for sale 216 -  
Change in grants (5,590) (13,768) 
Change in pensions liability (1,577) 2,467 
Change in provisions - (321) 
Change in debtors (609) (1,731)  
Change in properties for sale 5,680 1,581 
Change in creditors 532 (1,410)  
Change in stock - (28) 
Change in investments (227) (349) 
   
Net cash inflow from operating activities 37,391 34,074 

 

 

34 Units under management and development 

 2021 
Number 

New Units Disposals Tenure 
Transfer 

2022 
Number 

General needs housing      
- Social 5,069 - (13) (1) 5,055 
- Affordable 623 - (1) 1 623 

Low-cost home ownership 796 22 - (25) 793 
Supported housing and housing for older people      

- Social 141 - - - 141 
- Affordable 32 - - (1) 31 

Intermediate Rent 19 - - - 19 
Key worker accommodation 50 - - - 50 
Total Social Housing Homes 6,730 22 (14) (26) 6,712 
      
Market rent 4 - - - 4 
Leasehold units 513 - (10) 26 529 
Commercial & offices 27 - - - 27 
Garages  8 - - - 8 
Other 1 - - - 1 
Total Owned 7,283 22 (24) - 7,281 
      
Accommodation managed for others 4 - - - 4 
Total Managed Accommodation 7,287 22 (24) - 7,285 
      
Units managed by other organisations 222 - - - 222 
Total owned and managed accommodation 7,509 22 (24) - 7,507 
      
Total units owned and under development 51 74 - - 125 
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35 Related party transactions 

Board members who are tenants have the same tenancy terms and conditions and pay the same rent as other tenants who are not Board members. Rent 
charged for 2022 was £4,095. There was no outstanding balance as at 31 March 2022. 
 

There were no season ticket loans to executive officers. (2021: - 2 season ticket loans). When a season ticket loan is taken, the terms and interest rate is the 
same as that available to staff.         

Other related Transactions: 

During the year the Association purchased construction services in the ordinary course of business from Delta Homes Limited a subsidiary, at a cost of £2.5m 
(2021: £4.0m). During the year, Delta Homes purchased from the Association staff costs of £0.1m (2021: £0.2m) and charged the Association interest of £18k 
(2021: £11k) on intercompany balances owing by the Association. Amounts owed to associates at the reporting date were £0.7m (2021: £1.3m). 

 

 

36 Capital commitments 

 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 
Expenditure contracted for but not provided for in the financial statements 1,761 1,920 
Expenditure authorised by the board but not contracted for 47,445 35,341 

 

Capital commitments will be financed by Social Housing Grant, with the balance of funding coming from existing unutilised debt facilities and proceeds from 
the sale of properties. 

 

37 Financial commitments 

Total minimum lease commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: 

 

 2022 2021 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
 Buildings Other Buildings Other 
     
Less than 1 year 682 - 633 - 
Between 1 and 5 years 1,594 - 316 - 
Greater than 5 years 1,096 - - - 
 3,372  - 949  -  
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